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Independent Auditotr’s Report

To the Members of Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Global Health Limited (formerly known
as Global Health Private Limited) (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (Tnd AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2023, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (TCAT) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global
Health Private Limited) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(cont’d)

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

5. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our repott.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowance for expected credit loss related to trade
receivables

Refer note 5.11, 5.21(d) and 36(ii)(b) to the standalone
financial statements for significant accounting policy and
credit risk exposure respectively.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company had ¥ 23,133.79 lakhs
as outstanding gross trade receivables and ¥ 5,824.25 lakhs
as allowance for expected credit loss. The Company
applies simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109
Financial Instruments, which requires lifetime expected
credit losses (‘ECL’) to be recognised from the date of
initial recognition of receivables.

Owing to the nature of operations of the Company and
related customer profiles, for the purpose of expected
credit loss assessment of trade receivables, the Company
exercises significant judgement to estimate timing and
amount of realization of trade receivables which involves
consideration of ageing status, credit information of its
customers, historical trends of collection and expected
deduction basis past trends.

Considering the significant judgement involved, high
estimation uncertainty and materiality of amounts
mvolved, we have identified allowance for expected credit
loss on trade receivables as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures in relation to allowance for expected
credit Joss on trade receivables, but were not limited to the
following:

» Obtained an understanding of the process adopted by
the Company for calculation, recording and monitoring
of the impairment loss;

» Understood the approprateness of Company’s
accounting policy for allowance for expected credit loss
on trade receivables and assessed its compliance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS?);

> Involved our Information Technology (TT°) specialists
to evaluate design and test operating effectiveness of I'T
general controls and key automated controls of the
Company’s IT system around allowance for expected
credit loss;

> Assessed, on a sample basis, that items in the receivables
ageing report were classified within the cotrect ageing
bracket by comparing individual items in the report with
underlying documentation;

> Analysed the methodology used by the management and

considered the payment history of customers to
determine the trend used for arriving at the expected
credit loss provision by wvalidating collection and
deduction trends. Since the assumptions and inputs used
for calculating ECL is based on historical data, we
assessed whether such historical experience was
representative of current circumstances; and

» Evaluated the appropdiateness and adequacy of the
related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
to reflect the expected credit loss provision and trade
receivables.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
repott.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance concylu‘sion;h‘érgon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it Be;comes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
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s materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
fo communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
tecords in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors atre also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or etror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and\b}\i:e\operating effectiveness of such controls;
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e Hvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditot’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

e Hvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undetlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid remuneration
to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified

in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global

Health Private Limited) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{conr’d)

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act;

¢)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company, as detailed in note 39A to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the impact
of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2023;

1. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

1if. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

V. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
52(iv) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources ot kind of funds) by the Company
to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
52(v) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend
ot invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023; and
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TItdependent Auditor’s Report to the members of Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global
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vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting softwatre which
has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not
applicable for the cutrent financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N /N500013
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2023
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
report that:

O @

(b)

©

CY

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment
and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period
of two years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment and
right of use assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in
note 6A to the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

() (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the

year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate
and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggtregate for each class of inventory were noticed as
compared to book records.

(b) As disclosed in note 46E to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a

working capital limit in excess of X 5 crore by banks or financial institutions based on the security of
current assets. The quarterly statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions and such statements are in agreement with the
books of account of the Company for the respective periods, except for the following:

Name of the Bank Working Nature of | Quarter (Q) | Information | Information | Difference
capital cutrent and disclosed as as per (R in lakhs)
limit assets financial per return books of
sanctioned | offered as | year 2022-23 | ( in lakhs) accounts
Rin security (FY 23) (R in lakhs)
lakhs)
ICICI Bank Limited, 16,000.00 | Inventories | Q1 FY 23# 30,808.00 30,861.87 53.87%*
HDFC Bank Limited and trade
and Yes Bank Limited” receivables
ICICI Bank Limited, 16,000.00 | Inventories Q2 FY 23* 30,227.00 30,228.74 1.74%¢
HDFC Bank Limited and trade
and Yes Bank Limited" receivables
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Global Health Limited (formertly known as Global Health Prtivate Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

Name of the Bank Working Nature of | Quarter (Q) | Information | Information | Difference
capital current and disclosed as as per (X in lakhs)
limit assets financial per return books of
sanctioned | offered as | year 2022-23 | (¥ in lakhs) accounts
Rin security (FY 23) (R in lakhs)
lakhs)
ICICI Bank Limited, 16,000.00 | Inventories | Q3 FY 23* 32,265.00 32,329.55 64.55%*
HDFC Bank Limited and trade
and Yes Bank Limited” recetvables
TCICI Bank Limited, 16,000.00 | Inventories Q4 FY 23* 29,062.00 27,355.22 (1,706.78)
HDFC Bank Limited and trade HH
and Yes Bank Limited”® receivables

~ ICICI Bank Limited, HDFC Bank Limited and Yes Bank Limited working capital limits amounts to X 5,000 lakhs,
5,000 lakhs and X 6,000 lakhs respectively.

* Per books of account which were not subject to audit or review

# Per books of account which were subject to audit

*## The variances, as stated in note 46E to the standalone financial statements, for the quarter(s) ended 30 June
2022, 30 September 2022 and 31 December 2022 are not material.

##f The variance as stated in note 46E to the standalone financial statements is largely on account of certain
recetvables written off as at the year-end.

111) (a) The Company has not provided any loans or provided any advances in the nature of loans, or
pany p Y p ¥
guarantee, or security to any other entity during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iif) (a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not provided any guarantee or given any security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans during the year. However, the Company has made investment in two subsidiaries
amounting to X 3,001.00 lakhs (yeat-end balance X 33,643.80 lakhs) and in our opinion, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, such investments made are, prima facie, not prejudicial
to the interest of the Company.

() The Company does not have any outstanding loans and advances in the nature of loans at the
beginning of the current year nor has granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans during the
year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iif)(c), 3(iif)(d), 3(iif)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(av) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made, as applicable.
Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 and section 186
of the Act in respect of loans granted, guarantees and secutity provided by it.

v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

_ZoiNip~ The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section
LD LT N . . A .
SEAN148 of the Act in respect of the business activities of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the
(@ . . <
%Ei ooks of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government

/ ;"for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
4
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

(vii)(2)

and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of
the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular
in deposmng undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in sub-

clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute
except for the following:

Name of the | Nature of dues Gross Amount paid | Period to Forum where
statute amount under which the dispute is
(R in lakhs) | protest R in amount pending
lakhs) relates
Income-tax Disallowance of 68.00 - Assessment Commissioner
Act, 1961 certain expense Year 2016-17 | of Income-tax
(Appeals)
Income-tax Disallowance of 1,045.95 - Assessment Commissioner
Act, 1961 employee share- Year 2017-18 | of Income-tax
based  payment (Appeals)
expense and
certain other
expense
Income-tax Disallowance of 1,106.22 - Assessment Commissioner
Act, 1961 employee share- Year 2018-19 | of Income-tax
based  payment (Appeals)
expense and
certain other
expense
Income-tax Disallowance of 348.82 - Assessment Commissioner
Act, 1961 employee share- Year 2020-21 | of Income-tax
based  payment (Appeals)
expense and
certain other
expense

(viii)

(ix) (2)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
tepayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from the
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company
has not been declared a- Wﬂlﬁll defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any

AN
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

() In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way

of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the

standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity
ot person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans

() (@)

(b)

(i) (2)

()

©

(i)

during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of
mitial public offer were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained, though idle/suplus
funds which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in readily realisable liquid
investments.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period
covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by
the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by
the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related
Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as prescribed
under section 133 of the Act.

(xiv)(a)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an

internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

(b)We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period

under audit.

Chartered Accountants



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a)The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(b)Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does
not have any CIC.

xvi)) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediatel
pany y y y
preceding financial year.

(xvill) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts towards
Corporate Social Responsibility pertaining to other than ongoing projects as at end of the current
financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has transferred the remaining
unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under sub-section (5) of section 135
of the Act, in respect of ongoing project, within a period of 30 days from the end of financial year to a
special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the Act.

Chartered Accountants



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 16 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited) on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under
this repott.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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Rajni Mundra
Partner
Membetship No.: 058644

UDIN: 23058644BGXZ0OV2736

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2023
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Global Health Limited (formerly
known as Global Health Private Limited) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended
31 Mazrch 2023

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Global Health Limited (formerly known
as Global Health Private Limited) (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Chatged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘TCAT). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the ICAT prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

C hartered Accountants



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Global Health Limited (formerly
known as Global Health Private Limited) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023 (cont’d)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occut and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies ot procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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Rajni Mundra

Partner

Membership No.: 058644

UDIN: 23058644BGXZ0OV2736

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2023
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Glob @ Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited )

Stan Fline balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

ASSEETS

Prop €11, plant and equipment
Cfxpiff11 Vork-in-progress

Right Ofuse a
Intars8le assets
Finag1Cid assets

I Veitments

O the: financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
IncosMe-tax assets (net)
Othet Non-current assets
Total Non-current assets

Curréntassets

Inver1toties

Finaricial assets
Tradc receivables
Cashand cash equivalents
O therbank balances
O ther financial assets

Other current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Other financial labilities
Provisions
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Orther financial labilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these standalone fina

statements.

This is the standalone balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Rajni @xndra

Partner
Membership No.: 058644

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2023

Notes

6 A
6 A
6B

17 A
18

19 A
20 A
24 A
21 A
22 A

19 B
20 B

23 A
23 B
24 B
22 B
21 B

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

P
r. Naresh Trehan

Chairman and Managing Director

[DIN:00012148]

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2023
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e
Sanjeev Kumar
Group Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2023

/

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
( in lakhs) (X in lakhs)

54,320.72 56,301.19
7,493.83 641.97
26,513.16 26,192.85
155.62 200.59
76,498.80 73,401.55
3,251.41 1,328.21
2,570.80 1179.23
5,443.24 5,037.19
1,831.04 239.11
1,78,078.62 1,64,521.89
422143 4,002.11
17,309.54 17,305.31
64,278.09 6,531.24
50,204.25 37,601.81
2,755.80 4,966.80
1,002.43 1,204.28
1,39,791.54 71,611.55
3,17,870.16 2,36,133.44
5,363.90 5,064.48
24352177 1,68,910.84

2,48,885.67

1,73,975.32

579833 8,871.99
15,832.95 15,546.48
551.37 540.56
4,952.81 4.819.53
2,184.39 2,187.17
29,319.85 31,965.73
435647 3,340.85
277736 3,048.39
5437.70 2,591.75
8,795.16 7,735.80
8,164.81 7,089.64
8,134.08 5,027.77
1,999.06 1,358.19
39,664.64 30,192.39
3,17,870.16 2,36,133.44

P%é!ka Sahni

Group Chief Executive Officer and Director

[DIN:07132999]

Place: Gurugram

Date: 27 May 2623
o

Jeepak Khanna
Financial Controller

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2023

N
e~
Rahul Ranjan

Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2023




Global Hedlth Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Standalon# statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particularg

Income

Revenue frOm operations
Other incofe

Total incofe

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Changes in nventories of stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Impairment losses on financial assets
Retainers and consultants fee

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expenses
Current rax (including earlier years)
Deferred tax credit

Profit after tax

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans

Income-tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share (face value of ¥ 2 each)
Basic (X per share)
Diluted (R per share)

Notes

26

27A
278
27C

33

34

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(% in lakhs) ® in lakhs)
1,95,944.62 1,76,495.77
6,168.29 3,503.88
2,02,112.91 1,79,999.65
43,010.47 42,191.19
3,590.34 2,931.38
(40.65) (278.54)
53,163.41 49,465.70
2,616.14 2,758.28
8,608.86 8,717.31
746.24 309.77
18,417.81 15,444.50
36,829.79 28,877.32
1,66,942.41 1,50,416.91
35,170.50 29,582.74
9,736.19 8,566.21
(890.21) (861.87)
26,324.52 21,878.40
154.86 (314.39)
(38.98) 79.13
115.88 (235.26)
26,440.40 21,643.14
10.16 8.68
10.15 8.66

The accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an mtcgra part of

these standalone financial statements.

This 1s the standalone statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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/S A
D .”Naresh Trehan

Rajni Mundra

Partner

Membership No.: 058644 {

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 May 2023

[DIN:00012148]

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27 May 2023

S\

Saujelv Kumar

Group Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2023

Chairman and Managifig Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

éroup Chief Executive Officer and Director

\é\.k Y oA

RV
%pak Khanna
/s
Financial Controller

[DIN:07132999]

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 202%
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Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2023

Rahul Ranjan
Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2023



Global Heald® Ymited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Standalone s¢2%nent of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2023

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(X in lakhs) ® in lakhs)
A CASH FLOVS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit bef 35,170.50 29,582.74
Adjustme 2 Yfor:
Deprcci""»‘bn of property, plant and equipment 7,400.81 7,307.95
Deprect@fin on right of use assets 1,103.65 1,301.64
Amorti 73lon of intangible assets 104.40 107.72
Loss/ () on sale of property, plant and equipments (net) 67.65 (26.63)
Excess Pvisions written back (994.04) (612.39)
Interest iMome on bank deposit and other financials assets measured at amortised cost (3,324.12) (1,548.05)
Interest Mome on refund of income-tax (47.36) -
GoverrMiat grants income (507.19) (929.54)
Unreali Sedforeign exchange loss/(gain) (nef) 160.09 (17.82)
Interest Ofborrowings 540.12 669.63
Interest Oflease liabilities 1,870.88 1,957.85
Interest Ofdeferred payment liabilities and other borrowing costs 205.13 130.80
ImpaireT€nt losses on financial assets 746.24 309.77
Employ€€share based payment expense 7478 173.81
Provision or employee benefits (net) 275.01 804.64
Provision or contingencies (expense) 654.00 589.21
Gain on1 derecognition of lease liabilities and right of use assets - (233.83)
Operating Phofit before working capital changes 43,500.55 39,567.50
Movement it working capital
Inventories (219.32) (833.23)
Other cuttent and non-current financial assets 2,216.00 (1,708.47)
Other cuttent and non-current assets 229.24 (650.35)
Trade receivables (733.88) (4,613.59)
Other current financial and non-financial liabilities 4,192.23 1,967.84
Other non-current liabilities 57.71 1,345.16
Trade payables 3,905.33 (593.61)
Provision for contingencies (net) - (1,862.86)
Cash flows from operations 53,147.86 32,618.39
Income-tax (paid) : (10,094.88) 9,078.05)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 43,052.98 23,540.34
B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(11,601.12) (6,458.44)
Purchase of property plant and equipments, capital work-in-progress and intangible assets (including capital advances, capital creditors and deferred payment liabilities)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipments 80.07 60.88
Movement in other bank balances (net) (12,602.44) (16,655.05)
Movement in bank deposits having maturity period more than 12 months (net) (1,912.18) 439.31
Interest received 3,308.09 1,514.15
Investment in subsidiary companies (3,001.00) (10,200.01)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (25,728.58) (31,299.16)
C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital (net of share issue expenses) 47,854.82 3,795.18
Proceeds from borrowings - 9,900.00
Repayment of borrowings (3,376.36) (53.29)
Interest paid on borrowings (589.68) (462.84)
Other borrowing costs paid (31.44) (27.15)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (1,870.88) (1,957.85)
Payment of lease liabilities (1,564.01) (1,434.649)
Net cash flows from financing activities (C) 40,422.45 9,759.41
Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 57,746.85 2,000.59
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,531.24 4,530.65
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note below) 64,278.09 6,531.24
Note: Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cash flow (refer note 15)
Balances with banks in current accounts 11,230.19 3,279.46
Cheques on hand 10.28 44.21
Cash on hand 142.90 123.25
Bank deposits with original maturity less than three months 52,894.72 3,084.32
64,278.09 6,531.24

The accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

This is the standalone statement of cash flow referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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Rajni Mundra ,}é "Dr. Naresh Trehan PAnkaj Sahni
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Group Chief Executive Officer and Director
Membership No.: 058644 [DIN:00012148] [DIN:07132999]
Place: Mumbat Place: New Delhi Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2023 Date: 27 May 2023 / pl\)ate: 27 May 2(2215”)
Z / N
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Sanjeev Kumar ak Khanna Rahul Ranjan

Group Chief Financial Officer “inancial Controller Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2023 Date: 27 May 2023 Date: 27 May 2023



Global H #lth Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)

Statemen fof changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

A Equityshare capital*

(% in lakhs)

Partic Uars

Balance as at

Changes during the

Balance as at

Changes during the

Balance as at

FEquity share capital

=]

Partictlars

1 April 2021 year 31 March 2022 year 31 March 2023
4,958.58 105.90 5,064.48 299.42 5,363.90
InstruMents entirely equity in nature** (% in lakhs)
Balance as at Changes during the Balance as at Changes during the Balance as at
1 April 2021 year 31 March 2022 year 31 March 2023
Compuborily convertible preference shares 3,250.00 (3,250.00) - -

e}

Other ¢quity*x (% in lakhs)
Particulars Reserve and surplus Total
Securities premium Share options Debenture Retained earnings Capital reserve
outstanding account | redemption reserve
Balance as at 01 April 2021 48,702.31 3,232.42 - 88,199.87 20.00 1,40,154.60
Profit for the year - - - 21,878.40 - 21,878.40
Other comprehensive income -
Re-rmeasurement loss on defined benefit plans (net of tax) - - - (235.27) - (235.27)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 21,643.13 - 21,643.13
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve - - 1,000.00 (1,000.00) - -
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Tssue of equity shares (on account of exercise of stock options) 9,793.48 (2,854.18) - - - 6,939.30
Employec share based payment expense - 173.81 - - - 173.81
Balance as at 31 March 2022 58,495.79 552.05 1,000.00 1,08,843.00 20.00 1,68,910.84
Profit for the year - - - 26,324.52 - 26,324.52
Other comprehensive income
Re-rmeasurement gain on defined benefit plans (net of tax) - - - 115.88 - 115.88
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 26,440.40 - 26,440.40
Transfer from debenture redemption reserve to retained earnings on - - (333.33) 333.33 - -
partial repayment
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Issue of equity shares (including exercise of stock options) 49,815.76 (113.38) - - - 49,702.38
Share issue expenses (net of tax)*#+* (1,606.63) - - - - (1,606.63)
Employee share based pagment expense - 7478 - - - 74.78
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,06,704.92 513.45 666.67 1,35,616.73 20.00 2,43,521.77
“Refer note 17A for details
“*Refer note 17B for details
“*¥*Refer note 18 for details
#+irRefer note 50 for details
The accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
This is the standalone statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N /N500013 ;»/):;} %
. VY.
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V;nk}{Sahni
Partner {Group Chief Executive Officer and Director
Membership No.: 058644 [DIN:07132999]
Place: Mumbai Place: New Delhi Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2023 Date: 27 May 2023 / Date: 27 May 2023~ . [
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Sanjeev Kumar Deepak Khanna Rahul Ranjan
7

Group Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2023

cial Controller

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2023

Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram
Date: 27 May 2023




Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Background

Global Health Limited (‘GHL) (‘the Company’) was incorporated as a private limited (‘Ghbal Health Private Limited’
or ‘GHPL) on 13 August 2004. The Company is engaged in the business of providing healthcare services. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, GHPL has been converted to a public company namely ‘Global Health Limited’ vide
revised ‘Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon conversion from private company to public company’ dated
11 August 2021 as issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA?). During the year, the Company has completed
its Initial Public Offer (TPO’) process and equity shares of the Company got listed with the BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Limited on 16 November 2022. The Company is domiciled in India and its
registered office is situated at E — 18, Defence Colony, New Delhi — 110024.

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements (‘financial statements’) comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 27 May 2023. The revision to financial statements is permitted by Board of Directors after obtaining
necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
share based payments and certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value.

Recent accounting pronouncement

Amendment to Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide notification dated 31 March 2023, has issued an amendment to Ind
AS 1 which requires entities to disclose material accounting policies instead of significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information considered together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The amendment also
clarifies that immaterial accounting policy information does not need to disclose. If it is disclosed, it should not
obscure material accounting information. The Company is evaluating the requirement of the said amendment and
its impact on these financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide notification dated 31 March 2023, has issued an amendment to Ind
AS 8 which specifies an updated definition of an ‘accounting estimate’. As per the amendment, accounting estimates
are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty and measurement
techniques and inputs are used to develop an accounting estimate. Measurement techniques include estimation
techniques and valuation techniques. The Company is evaluating the requirement of the said amendment and its
impact on these financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide notification dated 31 March 2023, has issued an amendment to Ind
AS 12, which requires entities to recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal
amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. This will typically apply to transactions such as leases of
lessees and decommissioning obligations and will require recognition of additional deferred tax assets and liabilities.
The Company is evaluating the requirement of the said amendment and its impact on these financial statements.




5.1

5.2

Global Health Limited formerly known as Global Health Private Limited /)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and
other criteria set out in Division IT of Schedule III of the Act. Based on the nature of the operations and the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing/servicing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/non-current classification
of assets and liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Property, plant and
equipment purchased on deferred payment basis ate recorded at equivalent cash price. The difference between the
cash price equivalent and the total payment is recognised as interest expense over the period until payment is made.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as 2 separate asset is de-
recognised when replaced. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as
incutred.

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and setvicing equipment are recognised as property, plant and
equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as
inventory.

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress includes property, plant and equipment under construction and not ready for intended use
as on the balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and nsefitl lives)

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and. impairment losses. Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in
Schedule IT to the Act.

Asset class Useful life
Building 30 years
Medical equipments 5 to 15 years
Medical and surgical instruments 3 yeats
Other plant and equipment 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years




5.3

5.4

5.5

Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Asset class Useful life
Information Technology (IT) equipment 3 to 6 years
Office equipment 5 years
Electrical installation 10 years
Vehicles 6 to 8 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lower of useful life and the lease term available to the Company.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets (software) are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost
if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use.

Subsequent measurement
The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period of five years from the date of its acquisition.

De-recognition

Intangible asset is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. Cost is calculated on weighted average
basis. Cost of these inventories comprises of all cost of purchase, taxes (except where credit is allowed) and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of purchased inventory is
determined after deducting rebates and discounts.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition and other income

Revenue 1s recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers/patients in an amount
that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue
is measured at transaction price net of rebates, discounts and taxes. A receivable is recognised by the Company when
the controlis transferred as this is the case of point in time recognition where consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required. When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the
contract in the balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the
entity’s performance and the payment. No significant element of financing is deemed present as the sales are either
made with a nil credit term or with a credit period of 0-90 days. The Company applies the revenue recognition
criteria to each component of the revenue transaction as set out below.

Income from healtheare services

Revenue from healthcare services is recognized as and when related services are rendered and include services for
patients undergoing treatment and pending for discharge, which is shown as unbilled revenue under other current
financial assets. The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine
the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for the services, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect
taxes).
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Tncome from sale of pharmacy products to ont-patients

Revenue from pharmacy products is recognized as and when the control of products is transferred to the customer.
The Company considers its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price
is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the products, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes).

Clinical vesearch
Clinical research income is recognised in the accounting year in which the services are rendered as per the agreed
terms with the customers.

Interest income
Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income is recognised in the accounting year in which the services are rendered as per the agreed terms
with the customers.

Other income

Revenue arising from revenue sharing agreements is recognized as per the terms of the arrangement.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except for contingent rental income which
is recognised when it arises.

Borrowing cost

Botrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate (EIR). Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period they occur.

Leases
Company as a lessee — Right of use assets and lease liabilities

A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for
a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of leases

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several
factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to
extend/purchase etc.

Recognition and initial measurement of right of use assets

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end
of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives
received).

Subsequent measurement of right of use assets

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.
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Lease liabilities

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the
Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made
up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable payments based on an index or rate.
Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is
re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.
When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a
right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these short-term leases are recognised as an expense
in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantally all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
Rental income is recognized on straight-line basis over the lease-term.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered
as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash
generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and its
value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to atise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each balance sheet date
as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may
no longer exist or may have decreased.

Foreign currency

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statement of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements have been prepared
and presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions ate recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using
the closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different
from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in
which they arise.

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes 2 party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except

for those cartied at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value.
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The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement
of profit and loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether
the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCP).

Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortised cost — A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the

following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows;
and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequenty measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries — These are measured at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27
‘Separate Financial Statements’.

Investments in equity instruments of others — These are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an exsting financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make 2 payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Hinancial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, with a corresponding
adjustment basis the undetlying relationship i.e., investment in subsidiary. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the amount of expected loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and
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Immpairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its financial assets and
the impairment methodology depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

T7ade receivables

I respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses basis provision matrix approach.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

OJher financial assets

I respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life
of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurting on the
financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of
initial recognition and considets reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

The current income-tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted at the balance sheet date.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporaty differences and losses.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with the banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturity of three months and less.

Employee benefits
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employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus, incentives etc. These are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Defined contribution plan

Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further
obligations. Such benefits are classified as defined contribution plan as the Company does not catry any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis. In addition, contributions are made to employees'
state insurance schemes and labour welfate fund, which are also defined contribution plans recognized and
administered by the Government of India and Haryana respectively. The Company's contributions to these schemes
are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan -

The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employee will receive on
retirement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The gratuity plan provides a
lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation ot termination of employment, of an
amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The Company’s liability is
actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. This is based on standard
rates of inflation, salary growth rate and mortality.

Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to market yields on government bonds that
have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Service cost and net interest expense on the
Company’s defined benefit plan is included in employee benefits expense.

Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the defined benefit obligation are included in other
comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees (as per policy) which are in the nature
of long-term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be
availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed
by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Service cost and net
interest expense on the Company’s other long-term employee benefits plan is included in employee benefits expense.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from expetience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are also
recorded in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. When the grant relates to a revenue item, it
is recognized in standalone statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the related
costs are expensed. The grant can either be presented separately or can deduct from related reported expense.
Government grant relating to capital assets are recognised initially as deferred income and are credited to standalone
statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the expected lives of the related asset and presented within
other operating income.

Share based payment expense

The fair value of options granted under Global Health Employee Stock Option Scheme 2014 and 2016 is recognized
as an employee benefit expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

e Including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s shate price);
e Excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g., profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

e Including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g., the requirement for employees to save or holding
shares for a specified period of time).
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Total expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all the specified vesting
conditions ate to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of revision
to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

5.17 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of past events,
for which it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made. Provisions required to settle ate reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necessary to
reflect the cutrent best estimates of the obligation. Provisions ate discounted to their present values, where the time
value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed unless the likelihood of an outflow of resoutces is remote and there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.

Contingent assets are disclosed only when inflow of economic benefits therefrom is probable and recognized only
when realization of income is virtually certain.

5.18 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shatcholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events
including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shates outstanding during the petiod are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shates.

5.19 Initial public offer related transaction costs

The expenses pertaining to Initial Public Offer (IPO’) includes expenses pettaining to fresh issue of equity shares,
offer for sale by selling shareholders and listing of equity shares and has been accounted for as follows:

> Incremental costs that are directly attributable to issuing new shares were deferred and on consummation of
IPO, the same have been deducted from equity;

» Incremental costs that are not directly attributable to issuing new shates or offer for sale by selling shareholders,
has been recorded as an expense in the statement of profit and loss as and when incutred; and

»  Costs that relate to fresh issue of equity shares and offer for sale by selling shareholders has been allocated on
a rational and consistent basis as per the agreed terms.

5.20 Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Division II of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

5.21 Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting
policies. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different
than those ofiginally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial
statements.
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a)

b)

d)

g)

h)

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on
an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income (supported by reliable evidence) against which the
deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities.
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management assesses the
expected credit losses on outstanding receivables. Further, management also considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with industry and country in
which the customer operates.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties
in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.

Leases - The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the
lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it
considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise
the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the
lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

Government grant — Grants receivables are based on estimates for utilization of the grant as per the regulations
as well as analysing actual outcomes on a regular basis and compliance with stipulated conditions. Changes in
estimates or non-compliance of stipulated conditions could lead to significant changes in grant income and are
accounted for prospectively over the balance life of the asset.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine fair value of equity shares
(where active market quotes are not available) and stock options. This involves developing estimates and
assumptions around volatility, dividend yield which may affect the value of equity shares or stock options.

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors
including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.




Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

6A Property, plant and equiy and capital work-in-prog ® in lakhs)
Pardeulars Owned assets Towl Cagial wagkeine
Frechold land Building Medical Medical and surgical  Other plant and Furniture and T Office & Leaschol; Vehicles | progress
i i Juif fixtures installation improvements (refer note (iii) and
@)
Balance as at 01 April 2021 6,360.09 31,408.29 41,230.03 1,793.03 12,836.54 2,505.85 1,880.72 398.19 3,093.29 2,395.72 473.81 1,04,375.53 416.06
Additions - 46.51 5,438.49 169.54 219.20 75.74 446.60 17.44 6.13 2.58 +49.21 6,471.44 228.22
Disposals/adjustments - - (96.44) (75.54) - (6.45) (742 - - - (18.70) (204.55) (231)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 6,360.09 31,454.80 46,572.08 1,887.03 13,055.74 2,575.14 2,319.90 415.63 3,099.42 2,398.30 504.32 1,10,642.42 641.97
Additions - 96.72 3,664.98 261.51 345.16 79.07 928.26 30.21 4.67 113.75 5,568.06 6,885.51
Disposals/adjustments - - (718.83) (1.73) - 032 (103.16) (11.76) - - - (835.80) (33.65)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 6,360.09 31,551.52 49,518.23 2,146.81 13,400.90 2,653.89 3,145.00 434.08 3,104.09 2,512.05 548.05 1,15,374.68 7,493.83
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2021 - 7,622.18 21,722.49 1,497.81 7,051.92 2,122.20 1,545.68 348.04 2,943.44 2,223.74 126.10 47,203.59 -
Charge for the year - 1,288.22 4,084.36 170.24 1,244.04 92.80 214.20 26.12 39.07 89.01 59.89 7,307.95 -
Disposals/adjustments - - (80.68) (74.39) - (4.08) - - - (7.83) (170.31) -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 - 8,910.40 25,726.17 1,593.66 8,295.96 2,210.92 374.16 2,982.51 2,312.75 178.16 54,341.23 -
Charge for the year - 1,305.77 4,045.69 170.73 1,273.59 88.40 19.70 33.62 65.58 65.58 7,400.81 -
Disposals/adjustments - - (571.22) (173) - (©.21) (103.16) (11.76) - - - (688.08) -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - 10,216.17 29,200.64 1,762.66 9,569.55 2,299.11 1,985.54 382.10 3,016.13 2,378.33 243.74 61,053.96 -
Net block as at 31 March 2022 6,360.09 22,544.40 20,845.91 293.37 4,759.78 364.22 563.35 41.47 116.91 85.55 326.16 56,301.19 641.97
Net block as at 31 March 2023 6,360.09 21,335.35 20,317.59 384.15 3,831.35 354.78 1,159.46 51.98 87.96 133.72 304.31 54,320.72 7,493.83
(i) Contractual obligations
Refer note 39B for disclosure of 1 for the acq of property, plant and equipment.
(ii) Property, plant and equipment pledged as sccurity
Al movable property, plant and equipment. Refer note 19 for details.
(iii) Capital work-in-progress
Refer note 46A for ageing details.
(iv) Capital work in progress include details related to under construction hospital in Noida, scparately presented as follows:
(% in lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 346.58
Additions 144.42
Balance as at 31 March 2022 491.00
Additions 6,592.93
Balance as at 31 March 2023 7,083.93
6B Right of usc asscts (Z in lakhs)
Particulars Building premises Other plant and Vehicles Leaschold land* Total
equipment
Gross block
Balance as at 01 April 2021 13,170.32 127.59 5892 16,995.11 30,351.94
Additions 888.60 - - - 888.60
Disposals/adjustments (1,520.97) - - (1,564.52)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 12,537.95 127.59 15.37 16,995.11 29,676.02
Additions 1,360.40 - 26249 - 1,622.90
Disposals/adjustments (113.09 - (15.37) - (128.46)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 13,785.26 127.59 262.49 16,995.11 31,170.45
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2021 2,238.96 121 46.83 39L.60 2,688.60
arge for the year 1,091.04 5.85 8.95 195.80 1,301.64
Disposals/adjustments (463.52 - (43.55) - (507.07)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 2,866.48 17.06 12.23 587.40 3,483.17
Charge for the year 1,062.40 5.85 3540 195.80 1,299.45
Dispos: (113.09) - (1224 - (125.33)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3,815.78 22.91 35.39 783.20 4,657.29
Net block as at 31 March 2022, 9,671.47 110.53 3.14 16,407.71 26,192.85
Net block as at 31 March 2023 9,969.48 104.68 227.10 16,211.91 26,513.16

*Details of depreciation capitalised

( in lakh

[51 March 2023 | 195.80 |
;*jquch 2022 [ -
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Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

7 Intangible assets (% in lakhs)
Software

Balance as at 01 April 2021 640.52
Additions 3.10
Balance as at 31 March 2022 643.62
Additions 5943
Balance as at 31 March 2023 703.05

Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at 01 April 2021 335.31
Charge for the year 107.72
Balance as at 31 March 2022 443.03
Charge for the year 104.40
Balance as at 31 March 2023 547.43
Net block as at 31 March 2022 200.59
Net block as at 31 March 2023 155.62

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




Global H “lth Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Notes to e financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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Note -8

Inves ents - non-current

Inves iments in equity shares

Subsidiary - unquoted

GlobalHealth Patliputra Private Limited*

[304,407,407 equity shares (31 March 2022: 297,000,000 equity shares) of ¥ 10 each]
Medanta Holdings Private Limited* *

[71,736,341 equity shares (31 March 2022: 71,736,341 equity shares) of Z 10 cach]
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formecly known as Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited)
[100,10,000 equity shares (31 March 2022: Nil) of ¥ 10 each]

Others - unquoted$

Swasth Digital Health Foundation

[3,000 equity shares (31 March 2022: 5000) of ¥ 100 each]

Sub-total (A)

In compulsorily convertible preference shares

Subsidiary - unquoted

Medanta Holdings Private Limited

[2,478,929 shares (31 March 2022: 2,478,929 shares) of ¥ 10 each and 0.00001% coupon rate]
Sub-total (B)

Grand total (A+B)

Aggregite amount of unquoted investments (net)

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(X in lakhs) (% in lakhs)

32,642.80 30,546.55
40,350.00 40,350.00

1,001.00 -
5.00 5.00
73,998.80 70,901.55
2,500.00 2,500.00
2,500.00 2,500.00
76,498.80 73,401.55
76,498.80 73,401.55

“Investment infer alia, includes X 200.00 lakhs, recognised on account of transfer of license obtained under Served From India Scheme and % 742.80 lakhs on account of recognition and measurement of corporate

guarantee (financial guarantee) as per provisions of Ind AS.

“*Investment sufer akia , includes X 200.00 lakhs, recognised on account of transfer of license obtained under Served From India Scheme.

$Measured ar fair value through other comprehensive income. The undedying objective of this investment is not to earn the profits and hence, this does not carry any price risk.

Particulars of subsidiaries

Particulars Relationship Ownership interests Principal place of Accounted on

As at 31 March 2023 | As at 31 March 2022 business
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00%0 100.00%0 India Measured at cost as per
Medanta Holdings Private Limited Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% India Ind AS 27 'Separate
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known as Subsidiary 100.00% Not applicable India Financial Statements'
Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited)

* During the year, the Company has incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary namely, GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formetly known as Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited). Further, the

Company has infused equity amounting to Rs. 1,001 lakhs in the said subsidiary.

Note -9

Other financial assets - non-current

(Unsecured considered good)

Security deposits

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months

Other financial assets - current
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Unbilled revenue
Security deposits
Receivables under export benefit scheme#
Tnitial public offer related transaction costs (refer note 51)
Other receivables”
Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

“Other receivables are primarily on account of revenue sharing arrangements.

#Movement of receivables under export benefit scheme
Opening balance
Add : grants received during the year

Less : grants sold during the year
Closing balance

(This space has been intentiona:

Iy left blank)

67847 667.44
2,572.94 660.77
3,251.41 1,328.21
1,525.76 1,604.15
356.89 23.30
- 1,359.00
- 1,057.75
873.15 922.60
136.60 23239
(136.60) (232.39)
2,755.80 4,966.80
1,359.00
(1,359.00)

1,359.00




Global Healt$ Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Notes to the fMancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(X in lakhs) R in lakhs)
Note - 10
A Deferred ' assets (net)
Deferred U assets arising on account of:
Employee bnefits 1,561.07 1,530.83
Expected Credit loss on trade and other receivables 1,500.22 1,795.68
Right of 1Stassets and lease liabilities 2,363.29 1,860.44
Share issu€ txpenses 432.28 -
Others 203.21 43.34
6,060.07 5,230.29
Deferred ta liabilities arising on account of:
Property, Phat and equipment and intangible assets (3,489.27) (3,944.10)
Others - (106.96)
(3,489.27) (4,051.06)
Deferred tax assets (net) 2,570.80 1,179.23
R in lakhs)
Particulars As at Recognised in Recognised in statement Recognised in other As at
1 April 2022 statement of changes of profit and loss comprehensive income 31 March 2023
(a) in equity (©) (d) (atb+c+d)
(b)
Assets
Employee benefits 1,530.83 - 69.22 (38.98) 1,561.07
Expected credit loss on trade and other receivables 1,795.68 - (295.46) - 1,500.22
Right of use assets and lease labilities 1,860.44 - 502.85 - 2,363.29
Share issue expenses - 540.35 (108.07) - 432.28
Others 43.34 - 159.87 - 203.21
Liabilities - -
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (3,944.10) - 454.84 - (3,489.27)
Others (106.97) - 106.97 - -
Total 1,179.22 540.35 890.22 (38.98) 2,570.80
( in lakhs)
Particulars As at Recognised in Recognised in statement|  Recognised in other As at
1 April 2021 statement of changes of profit and loss comprehensive income 31 March 2022
(a) in equity (b) () (at+b+tctd)
(b)
Assets
Employee benefits 1,249.19 - 20251 79.13 1,530.83
Expected credit loss on trade and other receivables 1,717.72 - 77.96 - 1,795.68
Right of use assets and lease liabilities 1,635.25 - 225.19 - 1,860.44
Others 134.44 - (91.10) - 43.34
Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (4,498.39) - 554.28 - (3,944.10)
Others - - (106.96) - (106.96)
Total 238.21 - 861.87 79.13 1,179.23
Note - The current tax and deferred tax pertaining to items charged directly to equity is Rs. 108.07 lakhs and Rs.540.35 lakhs respectively.
Note - 11
Income-tax assets (net)
Prepaid taxes (net of provision for tax amounting to X 60,139.13 lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 50,402.94 lakhs)) 5,443.24 5,037.19
5,443.24 5,037.19
Movement in income-tax assets (net) (X in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 5,037.19 4,525.37
Add: Taxes paid 10,142.24 9,078.03
Less: Current tax payable (9,736.19) (8,566.21)
Closing balance 5,443.24 5,037.19

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Global H €ilth Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited bl
Notes to £he financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(¥ in lakhs) (X in lakhs)
Note -12
A Other lon-current assets
Ct\pltzllﬂdvnnccs 1,780.05 140.72
Advaries other than capital advances :
Prepud expenses 50.99 98.39
1,831.04 239.11
B Other current assets
Prepaidexpenses 641.38 604.68
Advarite to material/service providers 356.85 179.54
Advance to employees 24.20 +.87
Initial public offer related transaction costs (refer note 50) - 415.19
1,022.43 1,204.28
Note -13
Inven tories*#
Pharmacy, medical and laboratory consumables related to in-patient services 3,294.66 3,134.70
Pharmiacy and medical consumables related to sale of pharmacy products to out-patients 661.02 620.37
Generalstores 265.75 247.04
422143 4,002.11
* valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower
# First pari passu charge on inventories, both present and future
Note - 14
Trade receivables**
Trade receivables - considered good, unsecured# 18,875.84 18,890.84
Trade receivables — credit impaired 4257.95 5,316.86
23,133.79 24,207.70
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Trade receivables - considered good, unsecured (1,566.30) (1,585.53)
Trade receivables — credit impaired (4,257.95) (5,316.86)
17,309.54 17,305.31
* First pari passu charge on trade recetvables, both present and future.
~ Refer note 46B for ageing details.
# sufer-alia, includes T 333.85 lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 334.18 lakhs) receivables from related parties (refer note 37).
Note - 15
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current accounts® 11,230.19 3,279.46
Cheques on hand 10.28 44.21
Cash on hand 142.90 123.25
Bank deposits with original maturity less than three months 52,894.72 3,084.32
64,278.09 6,531.24
“Includes balances with e-wallet and credit card companies amounting to ¥ 231.45 lakhs (31 March 2022: € 225.93 lakhs).
Note - 16
Other bank balances
Bank deposits with maturity of more than three months and upto twelve months* 50,204.25 37,601.81
50,204.25 37,601.81

*Bank deposits (excluding interest accrued) of Z 917.15 lakhs (31 March 2022: 877.70 lakhs) are kept under lien with bank as margin money against bank guarantees and letter of credit.

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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Note 17 As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Equi £y share capital
AuthOtised Number* Amount Numbe Amount
(% in lakhs) (Zin lakhs)

Equity shares of ¥ 2 each (31 March 2022: Class A equity shares of ¥ 2 each) 66,76,24,992 13,352.50 50,51,25,000 10,102.50

13,352.50 10,102.50

i Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of ¥ 2 each (31 Macch 2022: Class A equity shares of ¥ 2 each) 26,81,95,172 5,363.90 25,32,23 930 5,064.48
5,363.90 5,064.48

“Durir} the year, the Board of Directors of the Company had approved the reclassification of authorised preference share capital of 466,954 of Rs. 696 each into authorised equity share capital of 162,499,992 equity
shares 0f Rs. 2 each.

Recoxciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares

Balanceas at the beginning of the year 25,32,23,930 5,064.48 24,79,29,090 4,958.58
Add: Tssued during the year (including exercise of stock options) (refer note 49) 1,49,71,242 299.42 52,94,840 105.90
Balan ce at the end of the year 26,81,95,172 5,363.90 25,32,23,930 5,064.48

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity share with face value of Z 2 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval
of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.

Details of shareholder holding more than 5% of equity share capital

Name of the equity shareholder Number Number

Dr. Natesh Trehan 5.42,65,082 20.23% 5,42,64,865 21.43%
Dr. Natesh Trehan jointly with Mrs. Madhu Trehan 3,44,60,375 12.85% 3,44,60,375 13.61%
Ar. Sunil Sachdeva jointly with Mrs, Suman Sachdeva 3,39,00,000 12.64% 3,40,00,000 13.43%
RJ Corp Limited 1,48,22,979 5.53% 1,00,00,000 3.95%

Dunearn Investments (Mauritius) PTE ltd. 4,30,09,895 16.04%% 4,30,09,895 16.98%
Anant Investments - - 6,50,00,005 25.67%

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash, by way of bonus shares and shares bought back for the period of 5 years
immediately preceding the balance sheet date

The Company did not issue any shares pursuant to contract(s) without pagment being received in cash.

The Company did not issue bonus shares in preceding 5 years.

The Company has not undertaken any buy back of shares.

i Shares reserved for issue under options

For details of shares reserved for issue under the Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) of the Company, refer note 42.

ii Details of promoter shareholding

For details, refer note 46D.

Instruments entirely equity in nature
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised Number* Amount Number Amount
(% in lakhs) (X in lakhs)
Compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS) (Class A) of % 696 each - - 466,954 3,250.00
- - 4,66,954 3,250.00

“During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company had approved the reclassification of authorised preference share capital of 466,954 of Rs. 696 each into authorised equity share capital of 162,499,992 equity
shares of Rs. 2 each.

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Note - 18 (X in lakhs) (¥ in lakhs)
Other equity
Securities premium 1,06,704.92 58,495.79
Share options outstanding account 513.45 552.05
Debenture redemption reserve 666.67 1,000.00
Retained earnings 1,35,616.73 1,08,843.00
Capital reserve 20.00 20.00

2,43,521.77 1,68,910.84

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Securities premium

Securities premium tepresents the premium on issue of shares. This balance can be utilised in accordance with provisions of the Act.

Share options outstanding account
This account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of the options issued to eligible employees pursuant to the Company's employee stock option plan.

Debenture redemption reserve
This reserve is creared as per the requirements of the Act in reference to non-convertible debentures issued by the Company.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings comprises of current period and prior periods undistributed carnings or losses after tax.




Global H £lth Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Notes to *he financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Note ~19
A BorroVings - non-current
Secur4d loans
Non-€onvertible debentures
From bank [refer note (2) below] 6,645.35 9,943.27
Less : Querent maturities of non-convertible debentures (3,314.35) (3,297.82)
3,331.00 6,645.45
Vehiclkloans
From financial institution [refer note (b) below] - 43.03
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings - (43.03)
Unsecured loans
Deferred payment liabilities [refer note (c) below] 3,509.45 2,226.54
Less: Current maturities of deferred payment liabilities (1,042.12) -
2,467.33 2,226.54
5,798.33 8,871.99
B Borrowings - current
Secured loans
Current maturities of non-convertible debentures 3,314.35 3,297.82
Currentmaturities of vehicle loans - 43.03
Unsecured loans
Current maturities of deferred payment liabilities 1,042.12 -
4,356.47 3,340.85
Repayment terms (including current maturities) and security details:
(a) During the previous year ended 31 March 2022, the Company had issued non-convertible debentures of ¥ 10,000 lakhs to Asian Development Bank which cacries an interest of 7.095% per annum. The loan is secured by

way of hypothecation of all interests and benefits in movable property, plant and equipment and machinery including medical equipment, medical and surgical instruments, other plant and equipment, furniture and
fisture, IT equipment, office equipment and electrical installations and excludes some moveable assets on which charge is already created.

(b) The Company had vehicle loan of ¥ 211.75 lakhs from Daimler Financial Services India Private Limited which carries an interest at 10.75% per annum, secured by way of hypothecation on vehicle purchased vide the
said loan. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly installments and repayment has commenced from 14 May 2018. During the year, the same has been repaid in full.

() This represents liability for medical equipment pucchased on deferred payment terms to be repaid between February 2024 to December 2024.

The changes in the Company's liabilities arising from financing activities are summarised as follows:

Particulars Borrowings*® Finance cost# Total

1 April 2021 96.32 - 96.32

Cash flows:

- Interest expense - 669.63 669.63

- Non-cash adjustments 43.27 - 43.27

- Proceeds from borrowings 9,900.00 - 9,900.00

- Payments made (53.29) (462.84) (516.13)
31 March 2022 9,986.30 206.79 10,193.09

1 April 2022 9,986.30 206.79 10,193.09

Cash flows:

- Interest expense - 540.12 540.12

- Non-cash adjustments 35.42 - 35.42
- Payments made (3,376.36) (589.68) (3,966.04)
31 March 2023 6,645.36 157.23 6,802.59

* This includes current maturities of non-current borrowings and current borrowings.
# Opening and closing balances represent interest accrued (excluding interest accrued on deferred payment liabilities) outstanding at the respective year-end.

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(T in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Note - 20
A Lease liabilities - non-current
Lease liabilities 15,832.95 15,546.48
15,832.95 15,546.48
B Lease liabilities - current

Lease labilities 2,777.36 3,048.39
2,777.36 3,048.39
The changes in the Company’s lease liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows: (X in lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Lease liabilities as at 01 April 2021 (current and non-current) 20,445.99
Additions . 874.81
Deletions on account of early termination (1,291.29)
Interest on lease liabilities 1,957.85
Payment of lease liabilities (3,392.49)
Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022 (current and non-current) 18,594.87
Lease liabilities as at 01 April 2022 (current and non-current) 18,594.87
Additions 1,588.77
Deletions on account of early termination 9.33)
Interest on lease liabilities » 1,870.88
Payment-ofiease liabilities (3,434.89)
S wiv\ﬁéé@s\g 31 March 2023 (current and non-current) 18,610.31




Global H €l Limited (formerly known as Global Fealth Private Limited )
Notes to thtfinancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 21 (% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
A ProviSims - non-current
Provi St for employee benefits:
Gatiy 3,473.00 3,241.08
CoMpensated absences 1,479.72 1,578.45
4,952.81 4,819.53
B ProviSits - current
Provision for employee benefits:
Greattity 845.17 752.04
ComMpensated absences 404.62 510.88
Provision for contingencies# 749.27 95.27
1,999.06 1,358.19
#Movenent of provision for contingencies
Openingbalance 95.27 1,273.65
Add : provision made during the year 654.00 589.21
Less : pad during the year - (1,767.59)
749.27 95.27
Note:,
The provision for contingencies pertains to the estimate of the present probable obligation of cash outflow on account of delay in completion of the under construction facility per agreement.
Note - 22
A Other non-current liabilities
Deferredincome (on account of government and other grants)* 2,184.39 2,187.17
2,184.39 2,187.17
B Other current liabilities
Payable to statutory authorities 2,069.71 1,449.10
Advance from customers 3,549.20 2,852.88
Deferredincome (on account of government grants)* 585.09 498.19
Other liabilities# 1,930.08 227.60
8,134.08 5,027.77
#This indudes balance outstanding of Rs. 1,710.59 lakhs in reference to initial public offer related expenses.
*Deferred income classified into
Non-curtent portion 2,184.39 2,187.17
Current portion 585.09 498.19
2,769.48 2,685.36
*Deferred income (on account of government and other grants)
Opening balance 2,685.36 2,211.80
Grants received during the year 591.31 978.10
Less : Released to statement of profit and loss (507.19) (504.54)
2,769.43 2,685.36
Note - 23
Trade payables”®
A Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises® 5,437.70 2,591.75
5,437.70 2,591.75
*Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 2006”) has been tabulated below:
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1) |the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year; 5,437.70 2,591.75
i) |the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each - -
accounting year;
iii) | the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without - -
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act;
1v) |the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and 6.23 175
v) |the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small - -
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.
B Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Due to related parties 66.23 58.15
Due to others 8,728.93 7,677.65
8,795.16 7,735.80
~ Refer note 46C for ageing details.
Note - 24
A Other financial liabilities - non-current
Financial guarantee liability 551.37 540.56
551.37 540.56
B Other financial liabilities - current
Financial guarantee liability 75.86 65.40
Interest accrued 147.73 336.71
Capital creditors 1,778.98 881.13
5.50 5.50
5,739.66 5,504.03
417.08 296.87
8,164.81 7,089.64




Glob Al Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Notesto the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

MNote - 25

Revenue from operations

Income from healthcare services
In patient
Out patient

Income from sale of pharmacy products to out-patients
Sale of pharmacy products

Other operating revenue
Grant tncome (on account of government and other grants)
Clinical research income

Other operating revenue

Note - 26
Other income
I[nterest ncome on bank deposits

Interest income on other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Interest income on refund of income-tax

Rental income

Excess provisions of written back

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Sponsorship income

Revenue share from food court

Gamn on de-recognition of lease liabilities and right of use assets*

Miscellaneous mncome

* on acconnt of early termination of lease

Note - 27A
Cost of materials consumed

Pharmacy, medical and laboratory consumables related to in-patient services

Opening stock

Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock
Materials consumed

General stores
Opening stock

Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock
Materials consumed

Note - 27B
Purchases of stock-in-trade

Note - 27C

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Opening stock

Less: Closing stock

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Note - 28

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages*

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Employee share based payment expense

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

® in lakhs)

® in lakhs)

1,55,809.51 1,40,678.04
33,448.90 30,366.79
5,597.20 4123.67
507.19 929.54
157.60 194.22
42422 203.51
1,95,944.62 1,76,495.77
3,308.00 1,514.15
16.03 33.90
47.36 -

129.26 167.71
994.04 612.39

- 26.63
87855 243.27
29874 220.32

. 233.83
496.22 451.68
6,168.29 3,503.88
3,134.70 2,540.88
42,480.89 42,043.04
(3,294.66) (3,134.70)
42,320.93 41,449.22
247.04 286.17
708.25 702.84
(265.75) (247.04)
689.54 741.97
43,010.47 42,191.19
3,590.34 2,931.38
62057 341.83
661.02 62037
(40.65) (278.54)
51,101.01 47,595.71
1,791.80 1,688.12
195.82 8.06
74.78 173.81
53,163.41 49,465.70

*This includes salaty expense of employees working for research and development amouating to Z 96.75 lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 68.91 lakhs).
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Globdl Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Lintited)
Noté&sto the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

MNote - 29

Finance costs

Tnterest on non-convertible debentures
Interest on vehicle loans

Interest on lease labilities

Interest on deferred payment liabilities
Other borrowing costs

Note - 30

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on right of use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Note - 31
Impairment losses on financial assets
Espected credit loss on trade receivables

Note - 32A
Retainers and consultants fee
Retatners and consultants fee

Note - 32B
Other expenses
Power and fuel
Lease rent:
Premises
Vehicles
Equipments*
Repairs and maintenance:
Equipments
Office
Building
Rates and taxes
Recruitment expenses
Insurance
Travelling and conveyance
Communication expenses
Auditor's remuneration#
Statutory audit fees (including taxes)
Reimbursement of expenses (including taxes)
Other services (including taxes)
Pantry expenses
Laundry expenses
Security expenses
Facility management expenses
Advertisement and sales promotion
Research and development expense**
Qutsourced services
Facilitation fee
Legal and professional fee
Printing and stationery

Subscription and membership charges

Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note (i) below)

Directors' sitting fees
Bank charges
Foreign exchange - loss (net)

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment (net)
Travel, boarding and other related expenses for conferences

Miscellaneous expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

® in lakhs)

(® in lakhs)

539.70 661.63
0.43 8.00
1,870.88 1,957.85
173.69 103.65
31.44 27.15
2,616.14 2,758.28
7,400.81 7,307.95
1,103.65 1,301.64
104.40 107.72
8,608.86 8,717.31
746.24 300.77
746.24 309.77
18,417.81 15,444.50
18,417.81 15,444.50
3,684.05 3,180.19
85.0 99.58
37.55 4735
4,442.39 434141
5,071.38 422133
66+.07 580.62
995.43 428.69
1,141.25 1,193.33
90.92 149.35
211.06 198.56
865.07 41230
331.22 260.16
105.02 43.84
4.84 0.76
61.12 42.48
1,792.59 1,621.34
373.15 350.44
1,036.30 97059
4,984.31 4,543.43
2,104.52 194.90
3.40 5.90
536.57 652.77
2,896.74 1,567.11
2,174.82 1,658.57
825.12 545.36
142.09 100.70
340.10 207.53
12744 79.06
565.74 524.66
171.11 1.53
67.65 -
673.74 190.20
223.97 463.27
36,829.79 28,877.31

*This, inter alia, includes expenses pertaining to the lease rentals (towards the lease of the equipment) mcluding the expenses pertaning to the related laboratory consumables. Since the
bifurcation of expense between the lease (towards the equipment rent) and the non-lease component (towards consumables) is not available with the Company, hence, in accordance with

Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ the Company has opted to present the entire expense as lease expenses.

#During the year, Rs. 107.38 lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs. 308.99 lakhs) has been incurred as auditors fee in reference to initial public offer related work which includes special purpose audit,

audit of restated consolidated financial information and certain other cestifications. This has been adjusted with securities premum as part of shate issue expenses.

**This 1s professional fees incurred for research and development work.
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(i) Corpdate social responsibility ('CSR') expenses
i Amouit required to be spent by the Company during the year
ii Amount of expenditure incurred
COnstruction/acquisition of any asset
Onpurposes other than above
iii Shorthll at the end of the year
iv Total of previous year shortfall

v ReasOn for shortfall

vi Natureof CSR activities

For the year ended
31 March 2023

(® in lakhs)

340.10

23.25
316.85
97.71

Pertains to ongoing
project

IB free Haryana

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(X in lakhs)

207.53

54.06
153.47
135.30

Pertains to ongoing
project
TB free Haryana

vii During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has made contribution of Rs. 174.65 lakhs to Medanta Foundation - Poor and Needy Patients Welfare Trust in relation to CSR

expenditure.

viii The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the amount to be spent during the year.

ix Duringthe year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has incurred ¥ 23.25 lakhs from Company's bank account and % 191.06 lakhs from separate CSR unspent bank account.

Note -33

Tax expenses

Current tax (including earlier years)
Deferrd tax credit

Tax expense recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss

9,736.19 8,566.21
(890.21) (861.87)
8,845.98 7,704.34

The mujor components of the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company at 25.168% and the reported tax expense in the standalone

staternent of profit and loss are as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax 35,170.50 29,582.74
At statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2022: 25.168%0) 8,851.71 7,445.38
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Tax impact of statutory deduction allowed as per Income-tax Act, 1961 under the head income from 'House Property’ (33.49) (30.24)
Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed under Income-tax Act, 1961 233.89 334.03
Tax impact on balances taxable under Income-tax Act, 1961 - 57.37
Tax impact in respect of earlier years (57.10) -
Others (149.03) (102.20)
Tax expense 8,845.98 7,704.34

Note - 34

Earnings per share (EPS)

Earnings per share (EPS') is determined based on the net profit/loss attributable to the shareholders. Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year,
except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

5

Profit attributable to equity shareholders for basic and diluted EPS 26,324.52 21,878.40
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 25,92,08,847 25,21,63,050
Effect of dilution - weightage average number of potential equity shares on account of employee stock options™ 2,51,986 2,16,202
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 25,94,60,833 25,23,79,252

Earnings per equity share
Basic 10.16 8.68
Diluted 10.15 8.67

“Share options (unvested) ate considered to be potential equity shares. They have been included in the determination of diluted earnings per share to the extent to which they are dilutive.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Note - 35

Fair value disclosures

Fair value hierarchy

The following explains the judgements and estimates made in detenmining the fair values of the financial instruments. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the
Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Level I quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments .

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirecdy .
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability .

Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

The fair value of the financial assers and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. The following
methods were used to estimate the fair values:-

- Trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financial assets, trade payables and other current financial liabilities: Approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

- Borrowings taken by the Company are as per the Company's credit and liquidity risk assessment and there is no comparable instrument having the similar terms and conditions with related security being pledged and
hence the carrying value of the borrowings represents the best estimate of fair value.

(ii) Fair value of assets and liabilities which are d at ised cost for which fair value are disclosed (% in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Financial assets
Trade receivables 17,309.54 17,309.54 17,305.31 17,305.31
Cash and cash equivalents 64,278.09 64,278.09 6,531.24 6,531.24
Other bank balances 50,204.25 50,204.25 37,601.81 37,601.81
Other financial assets 6,007.21 6,007.21 6,295.01 6,295.01
Total financial assets 1,37,799.09 1,37,799.09 67,733.37 67,733.37
Borrowings (including current maturities of non-current borrowings) 10,154.80 10,154.80 12,212.84 12,212.84
Trade payables 14,232.86 14,232.86 55 10,327.55
Other financial liabilities 8,716.18 8,716.18 .20 7,630.20
Total financial liabilities 33,103.84 33,103.84 30,170.59 30,170.59
Note - 36
Financial risk management

(i) Financial instruments by category# (% in lakhs)
Particulars Fair value¥ Amortised cost

As at As at As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Financial assets
Investments 5.00 5.00 - -
Trade receivables - - 17,309.54 17,305.31
Cash and cash equivalents - - 64,278.09 6,531.24
Other bank balances - - 50,204.25 37,601.81
Other financial assets - - 6,007.21 6,295.01
Total financial assets 5.00 5.00 1,37,799.10 67,733.37
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including current maturities of non-cucrent borrowings) - - 10,154.80 1221284
Lease liabilities - - 18,610.31 18,594.87
Trade payables - - 14,232.86 10,327.55
Other financial liabilities - - 8,716.18 7,630.20
Total financial liabilities - - 51,714.15 48,765.45

@)

@
P

*This investment is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and is categorised as level 3 in fair value hierarchy,
#lnvestments in subsidiaries is measured at cost as per Ind AS 27 'Separate Financial Statements’.

Risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to market risk (Foreign exchange and interest cisk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credic risk Trade recervables, cash and cash cquivalents, other bank| Ageing amalysis Diversification of bank deposits and credit hrmits
Dalances and other financial assets and regular monitoring and follow ups

Liquiclity risk Borrowings, trade pagables and other financial labilities | Cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit limes and

borrowing facilities

Market risk — foreign exchange Future commercial tcansactions, recognised financial assets| Cash flow forecasting sensitivity analysis Forward foreign exchange contracts
and liabilities not denominated in Indian rupec

Market risk — interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Diversification of borrowings

Credit risk

Credit risk management
Credi risk is the sisk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial asset fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each financial asset. The carrying amounts of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments as per agreed tecms. This definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and
other macro-economic factors.

The Company has a credit risk management policy in place to limit credit losses due to non-performance of counterparties. The Company monitors its exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis. Assets are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Where loans and receivables are written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the dues.

Trade receivables

The Company closely monitors the credit-worthiness of the receivables through internal systems that are configured to define credit limits of customers, thereby, limiting the credit risk to pre-caleulated amounts. The
Company uses a simplified approach (lifetime expected credit loss model) for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables. Expected credit losses are measured on collective basis for each of
the following categories :
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Category Inputs for measurement of expected credit losses Assumptions
Government Information on deductions made by government agencies| Trade receivables ourstanding for more than fwo years are considered imrecoverable. Allowance for
in past years expected credit loss on receivables outstanding for less than two years is recognised based on expected

deductions by government agencies,

Non-government

Individuals Individual customer wise trade receivables and information| Trade receivables ourstanding for more than two years are considered irrecoverable. Other receivables are
obtained through sales recovery follow ups considered good due to ongoing communication with customers.
Corporates Collection against outstanding receivables in past years Trend of collections made by the Company over a period of six years preceding balance sheet date and

considering default to have occurred if receivables are not collected for more than two years.

Third party administeators of insurance companies | Collection against outstanding receivables in past years Trade receivables outstanding for more than two years are considered irrecoverable. Allowance for
expected credit loss on receivables outstanding for less than two years s recognised based on expected
deductions by third party administrators.

Others Customer wise trade receivables and information obtained|Specific allowance is made by assessing party wise outstanding recervables based on communication
through sales recovery follow ups between sales team and customers.

Cash and cash eguivalets and other bank balances
Credit sisk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only investing in deposits with highly rated banks and financial institutions and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks
Credit risk is considered low because the Company deals with highly rated banks and financial institution.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes security deposits and other receivables. Credit risk related to these financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously,
while at the same time internal control system are in place to ensure the amounts are within defined limits. Credit risk is considered low because the Company is in possession of the underlying asset (in case of security
deposit) or as per trade experience (in case of unbilled revenue from patient and other receivables from revenue shaving arrangements). Further, the Company creates provision by assessing individual financial asset for
expectation of any credit loss basis 12 month expected credit loss model.

(b) Credit risk exposure

#) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach i.e. provision matrix approach using historical trends
As at 31 March 2023 (% in lakhs)
Particulars Government* Non-government
Individuals Corporates Third party Others Total
administrators of
insurance companies
Gross carrying value 16,429.26 414.08 1,216.03 4,435.27 638.54 23,133.78
Less: Expected credit loss (impairment) 3,703.26 95.94 803.48 980.71 240.85 5,824.24
Carrying amount (net of impairment) 12,726.00 318.74 41255 345456 397.69 17,309.54
* Inter alia, including outstanding balance from parties net of expected credit loss of similar economic characteristics ie., Central Government Health Scheme (CGHS") amounts to T 4,050.42 lakhs and Ex-serviceman
Contributory Health Scheme (ECHS') amounts to ¥ 2,748.79 lakhs.
As at 31 March 2022 (% in lakhs)
Particulars Government* Non-government
Individuals Corporates Third party Others Total
administrators of
insurance companies
Gross carrying value 16,464.83 1,251.61 1,609.39 4,101.78 780.09 207.70
Less: Expected credit loss (impairment) 3,387.19 857.83 1,048.30 1,169.92 439.14 6,902.39
Carrying amount (net of impairment) 13,077.64 393.78 561.08 2,931.87 340.94 17,305.31
* Inter alia, including outstanding balance from parties net of expected credit loss of similar economic characteristics ie., Central Government Health Scheme (CGHS") amounts to T 4,299.91 lakhs and Ex-serviceman
Contriburory Health Scheme (ECHS) amounts to  3,336.76 lakhs.
i) Expected credit losses for other financial assets (measured at an amount equal to 12 months expected credit losses)

As at 31 March 2023 (% in lakhs)
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of impairment provision
carrying amount at default losses
Cash and cash equivalents 64,278.09 - 64,278.09
Other bank balances 50,204.25 - 50,204.25

Other financial assets 6,143.81 136.60 6,007.21
As at 31 March 2022 (R in lakhs)
Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of impairment provision
carrying amount at default losses

Cash and cash equivalents 6,531.24 - 0,531.24
Other bank balances 37,601.81 - 37,601.81
Other financial assets 6,527.40 232.39 6,295.01

i) Reconciliation of expected credit loss for other financials asset and trade receivables (% in lakhs)
Reconciliation of loss allowance Other financial assets Trade receivables
Loss allowance as on 1 April 2021 232.39 6,592.62
Allowance for expected credit loss - 309.78
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2022 232.39 6,902.40
Allowance for expected credit loss - 746.24
Excess provision written back (on account of recovery) (95.79) -
Bad debts written off - (1,824.39)
Loss allowance as on 31 March 2023 136.60 5,824.25
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(€) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial iabilities that are sertled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due.

The Company maintains fexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed ceedit lines. Management monitors the Company’s liquidity position iner alia, comprising of the undrawn borrowing Facilities and
cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities a the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include conteactual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting

agreements.

(@ in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1-3years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 4,509.15 6,011.47 - 10,520.62
Lease liabilities 2,892.11 4,792.78 2,47,275.38 2,54,960.27
Trade payables 14,232.86 - - 14,232.86
Other financial liabilities 8,164.81 151.73 399.64 8,716.18
Total 29,798.93 10,955.98 2,47,675.02 2,88,429.93

(% in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2022 Less than | year 1-3years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 3,433.37 9,246.28 - 12,679.65
Lease liabilities 3,151.25 4,482.64 2,48,406.37 2,56,040.26
Trade payables 10,327.55 - - 10,327.55
Other financial liabilities 7,089.65 130.81 409.75 7,630.21
Total 24,001.82 13,859.73 2,48,816.12 2,86,677.67
The Company also has access to the following undrawn borrowing from banks at the end of the reporting period/yea.

(% in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Undrawn borrowing facilities (including non-fund based facilities) 9,759.65 12,634.12

(d) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Company has international trausactions and is exposed to forcign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions (imports and exports). Foreign exchange risk arises from furure commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s fnctional currency. The Company has not hedged its foreign exchange receivables and payables for the year ended 31 March 2023,

Foreign currency risk exposure:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Foreign currency INR Foreign currency INR
(% in lakhs) (X in lakhs)
Assets
Trade receivables (gross) ush 163.16 usb 300.22
163.16 300.22
Liabilities
Deferred payment Liabilities EURO 2,814.00 EURO 2,653.50
Deferred payment liabilities usD 1,039.96 usD
Trade payables UsD 39.65 UsD 19.98
Trade payables GBP 31.25 GBP -
Capital creditors usD 149.31 UusD 31.65
Capital creditors CHF - CHF 26274
4,074.15 2,967.87
Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises from foreign currency denominated financial instruments. ( in lakhs)
Particulars Currency As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Exchange rate Exchangerate | Exchange rate increase Exchange rate
increase by 6% | decrease by 6% by 3% decrease by 3%
Assets
Trade receivables (gross) usD 9.79 9.79) 6.00 (6.00)
Liabilities
Deferred payment liabilities EURO 168.84 (168.84) 53.07 (53.07)
Deferred payment liabilities usD 62.40 (62.40) - -
Trade payables usD 2.38 (2.38) 0.40 (0.40)
Trade payables GRP 1.87 (1.87) - -
Capital creditors usD 8.96 (8.96) 0.63 0.63)
Capital creditors CHF - 0.00 525 (5.25)

(ii) Interest rate risk

All the ourstanding borrowings of the Company are fixed interest bearing and hence, standalone statement of profit and loss is not sensitive to interest rate variation.
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Note - 37
Related pafttransactions
In accordan ¢ with the requirements of Ind AS 24, Related party disclosures, the names of the related parties, transactions and year-end balances with them as identified and certified by the
management e given below:
i) Entities <Vhere control exists
31 Maxch 2023
Subsidity companies
(1) Global Health Patliputra Private Limited
(if) Medanta Holdings Private Limited
(iii) GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known as Global Health Pharmacentical Private I imited) (incorporated on 29 June 2022)

31 Maxch 2022

Subsidiay companies
(1) Glabal Health Patliputra Private Limited
(i) Medanta Holdings Private Limited

ii) Individualwho exercise control/significant influence over the Company

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
() Dr. Naresh Trehan* (1) Dr. Naresh Trehan*

* Basis 2he rights available as per Articles of Association, Dr. Naresh Trehan was exercising control over the Company before listing of the equity shares of the Company. Post listing, basis the rights available as per the
amended Articles of Association, Dr. Naresh Trehan is now exercising significant influence over the Company. However, since Dr. Trehan was exercising control over the Company for part of the year, the Company has
disclosed all related party relationships and transactions for the entire year pertaining to Dr. Naresh Trehan.

iii) Key management personnel (KMP)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(1) Dr. Naresh Trehan — Chairman and Managing Director | (i) Dr. Naresh Trehan — Chairman and Managing Director
(i) Mr. Sunil Sachdeva (i) Mr. Sunil Sachdeva
(iii) Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria (it) Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria
(vi) Mr. Sanjeev Kumar (iv) Mr. Neeraj Bharadwaj (till 24 September 2021)
(v) Mr. Pankaj Prakash Sahni (v) Mr. Sanjeev Kumar
(vi) Mr. Hari Shanker Bhartia (vi) Mr. Pankaj Prakash Sahni
(vii) Mr. Vikram Singh Mehta (vii) Mr. Hari Shanker Bhartia
(vii1) Mr. Venkatesh Ratnasami (viit) Mr. Vikram Singh Mehta
(1x) Ms. Praveen Mahajan (ix) Mr. Venkatesh Ratnasami
(x) Mr. Ravi Gupta (x) Ms. Praveen Mahajan
(x1) Mr. Rajan Bharti Mittal (x1) Mr. Ravi Gupta (from 08 July 2021)
(xtf) Mr. Rahul Ranjan (xii) Mr. Rajan Bharti Mittal (from 08 July 2021)
(xtif) Mr. Rahul Ranjan (from 08 July 2021)

iv) Relatives of KMPs
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

Name of relatives Relationship with KMP
Mr. R.LL. Sachdeva Father of Mr. Sunil Sachdeva

Mrs. Savitri Sachdeva Mother of Mr. Sunil Sachdeva

Mrs. Shonan Trehan Daughter of Dr. Naresh Trehan

Mrs. Shyel Trehan Daughter of Dr. Naresh Trehan

Mrs. Madhu Trehan Wife of Dr. Naresh Trehan

Mr. Naveen Trehan Brother of Dr. Naresh Trehan

Dhara Jaipuria Wife of Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria

Varun Jaipuria Son of Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria

Kimaya Jaipuria Daughter in law of Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria
Devyani Jaipuria Daughter of Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria
Ambrish Jarpuria Son in law of Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria

v) Enterprises under the control/joint control of KMPs and their relatives or where KMPs are common, with whom transactions have been undertaken or whose balances are
outstanding:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

©HIFAN Global India Private Limited ®TFAN Global India Private Limited
(ii)Law Chamber of Kapur & Trehan (i)Law Chamber of Kapur & Trehan
(ii)Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited (if)Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
(iv)Sharak Healthcare Private Limited (iv)Sharak Healthcare Private Limited
(v)Language Architecture Body (LAB) (v)Language Architecture Body (LAB)
(vi) Vidyanta Skill Institute Private Limited (vi)Vidyanta Skill Institute Private Limited
(vi)Medanta Institute of Education & Research (I'rust) (vi)Medanta Institute of Education & Research (Trust)
(vi1) Varun Beverages Limited (vit) Varun Beverages Limited
()R] Corp Limited ()R] Corp Limited
(x)Devyani International Limited (x)Devyani International Limited
(xi)Diagno-Tabs. Private Limited (xi)Diagno Labs Private Limited
(xt S Tnfo {-Private Limited (xi)S.A.S Infotech Private Limited

Chambers o?‘SPiyjéN‘l'rchan (xiif)Chambers of Shyel Trehan

Medanta I?'omﬁ}@;;i}bﬂ - Poor and Needy Patients|(xiv)Medanta Foundation - Poor and Needy Patients Welfare

elfare Trust | Trust
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(a) Transactions “¥h related parties carried out in the ordinary course of business:

(® in lakhs)

S No. Particulars Year ended Related parties Total
Individual who Subsidiary Key management |Enterprises under the control of
exercise control companies personnel and their | KMPs and their relatives or
over the Company relatives where KMPs are common
1 |Rental inc@™e
Medanta I3 Stiute of Education & Research (Trust) 31 March 2023 - - - 10.17 10.17
31 March 2022 - - - 10.17 10.17
SAS Infote€h Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - - -
31 March 2022 - - - 8.79 8.79
GHL PharsM2& Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known as 31 March 2023 1.59 - - 1.59
Global HealthPharmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2022 - R - B -
2 |Revenue shae from food court
Devyani Intemational Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 298.74 298.74
31 March 2022 - - - 220.32 220.32
3 |Recruitmentexpenses
IFAN GlobalIndia Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - (7.93) (1.93)
31 March 2022 - - - 31.98 31.98
4 | Clinical res€arch income
Medanta Institute of Education & Research (Trust) 31 March 2023 - - - 145 1.45
31 March 2022 - - - 1.00 1.00
5 |Professional charges
Law Chamberof Kapur & Trehan 31 March 2023 - - -
31 March 2022 - - - 26.40 26.40
Medanta Instiute of Education & Rescarch (Trust) 31 March 2023 - - - - -
31 March 2022 - - - 8.97 8.97
Language Architect Boady 31 March 2023 - - - 40.00 40.00
31 March 2022 - - - - -
Chambers of Shyel Trehan 31 March 2023 - - - 58.99 58.99
31 March 2022 - - - 19.80 19.80
6 |Sale of property, plant and equipment (excluding taxes)
Medanta Holdings Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 18.00 - - 18.00
31 March 2022 - 9.60 - - 9.60
Global Health Padliputra Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 13.60 - - 13.60
31 March 2022 - 9.42 - - 9.42
7 |Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Medanta Holdings Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - - -
31 March 2022 - 2.54 - - 2.54
8 |Sale of medicines and consumables
Medanta Holdings Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 11.32 - - 11.32
31 March 2022 - - - _ B
31 March 2023 - 6.32 - - 6.32
Global Health Padiputra Private Limited 31 March 2022 _ _ _
9 |Purchase of medicines and consumables
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited 31 March 2023 16 - - 156
31 March 2022 - - _ -
Medanta Holdings Private Limited 31 March 2023 = 3154 - - 3154
31 March 2022 - - - B -
10 |Revenue from patients covered under tie-ups
Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 2,162.53 2,162.53
31 March 2022 - - - 2.437.35 2,437.35
11 |Rendering of healthcare services
R.L. Sachdeva 31 March 2023 - - 271 - 2.71
31 March 2022 - - 1.76 1.76
Mrs. Savitri Sachdeva 31 March 2023 - - 3.05 - 3.05
31 March 2022 - - 1.50 - 1.50
RJ Corp Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 2.01 2.01
31 March 2022 - - - 3.17 3.17
Varun Beverages Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 0.35 0.35
31 March 2022 - - - - -
Madhu Trehan 31 March 2023 - - 3.37 - 3.37
31 March 2022 - - - -
Devyani International Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 0.59 0.59
31 March 2022 - - - 2.01 2.01
Pankaj Sahni 31 March 2023 - - 0.12 - 0.12
31 March 2022 - - 0.12 - 0.12
S.A.S Infotech Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - - -
31 March 2022 - - - 13.26 13.26
Medanta Foundation - Poor and Needy Patients Welfare Trust 31 March 2023 - - - 1.95 1.95
31 March 2022 - - - 3.83 3.83
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 54.62 - - 54.62
31 March 2022 - - - - -
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known as 31 March 2023 - 22.65 - 22.65
Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2022 - - - - -
Medanta Holdings Private Limited 31 March 2023 263.00 - - 263.00
31 March 2022 - 79.14 - - 79.14
12 |Investment in subsidiary
Global Health Patiputra Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 2,000.00 - - 2,000.00
31 March 2022 - 10,200.00 - - 10,200.00
31 March 2023 - 1,001.00 - - 1,001.00

31 March 2022

31 March 2023

31 March 2022
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.

(X in lakhs)

SN& Particulars Year ended Related parties Total
Individuals who Subsidiary Key management | Enterprises under the control
exercises control companies personnel and their | of KMPs and their relatives or
over the Company relatives where KMPs are common
[
L~
13 |Expenses paid on behalf of
S.AS Infotech Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 400.92 400.92
31 March 2022 - - - 337.22 337.22
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 55.70 - - 55.70
31 March 2022 - - - - -
14 |Issue of equity share capital (including securities premium)
Dr. Naresh Trehan 31 March 2023 - - - - -
31 March 2022 3,754.59 - - 3,754.59
Ravi Kant Jaipuria 31 March 2023 - - 88.06 - 88.06
31 March - - - - -
Dhara Jaipuria 31 March 2023 - - 145.52 - 145.52
31 March 2022 - - - - -
Varun Japuria 31 March 2023 B B 145.52 - 145.52
31 March 2022 - - - - -
Kimaya Jaipuria 31 March 2023 - - - 145.52
31 March 2022 - - - -
Devyani Jaipuria 31 March 2023 - - 14552 - 145.52
31 March 2022 - - - - -
RJ Corp Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 145.52 145.52
31 March 2022 - - - - -
Ambrish Jaipuria 31 March 2023 - - 442 - 4.42
31 March - - - -
Pankaj Sahni 31 March 2023 - - - - -
31 March 2022 - - 22.56 22.56
15 |Guarantee given on behalf of subsidiary company to third
party
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - - -
31 March 2022 - 36,500.00 - - 36,500.00
Medanta Holdings Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - - -
31 March 2022 - 59.09 - - 59.09
16 |Guarantee withdrawn as given for subsidiary company to third
party
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - B _ -
31 March 2022 - 1,500.00 - - 1,500.00
17 |Director's sitting fees
Praveen Mahajan 31 March 2023 - - 35.40 - 35.40
31 March 2022 - - 21.24 - 21.24
Vikram Singh Mehta 31 March 2023 - - 27.14 - 27.14
31 March 2022 - - 16.52 - 16.52
Hari Shanker Bhartia 31 March 2023 - - 11.80 - 11.80
31 March 2022 - - 9.44 - 9.44
Ravi Gupra 31 March 2023 - - 33.04 - 33.04
31 March 2022 - - 20.06 - 20.06
Ranjan Bharti Mittal 31 March 2023 - - 18.88 - 18.88
31 March 2022 - - 11.80 - 11.80
18 |Salaries and other benefits
Dr. Naresh Trehan@ 31 March 2023 2,113.51 - - - 2,113.51
31 March 2022 1,837.08 - - - 1,837.08
Sanjeev Kumar#t 31 March 2023 - - 227.32 - 227.32
31 March 2022 - - 22149 - 221.49
Pankaj Sahni 31 March 2023 - - 482.40 - 482.40
31 March 2022 - - 391.41 - 391.41
19 |CSR Expense
Medanta Foundation - Poor and Needy Patients Welfare Trust 31 March 2023 - - - 174.65

31 March 2022

@ There are no post employment benefirs, other long-term employee benefits and share based payment payable to Dr. Naresh Trehan.

# There are no share based payment payable to Sanjeev Kumar.

(This space has been intentionally kft blank)
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%sing balance with related parties in the ordinary course of business :

(% in lakhs)
s Mo, Particulars Year ended Related parties Total
Individuals who Subsidiary Key Enterprises under the control
exercises control companies personn-iand their | of KMPs and their relatives or
over the Company relatives where KMPs are common
Equity share capital
Dr. Natesh Trehan jointy with Mrs. Madhu Trehan 31 March 2023 689.21 - 689.21
31 March 2022 - 689.21 - 689.21
Dr. Naresh Trehan 31 March 2023 1,085.30 - - 1,085.30
31 March 2022 1,085.30 - - - 1,085.30
Mer. Sunil Sachdeva Jointly with Mrs. Suman Sachdeva 31 March 2023 - - 678.00 - 678.00
‘ 31 March 2022 - - 680.00 - 680.00
RJ Corp Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 296.46 296.46
31 March 2022 - - 200.00 200.00
Ravi Kant Jaipuria 31 March 2023 - - 0.52 - 0.52
31 March 2022 - - -
Dhara Jaipuria 31 March 2023 - - 0.87 - 0.87
31 March 2022 - - - - -
Varun Jaipuria 31 March 2023 - - 0.87 - 0.87
31 March 2022 N B . . =
Kimaya Jaipuria 31 March 2023 - - 0.87 - 0.87
31 March 2022 - - - - -
Devyani Jaipuria 31 March 2023 - - 0.87 - 0.87
31 March 2022 - - - - -
Ambrish Japuria 31 March 2023 - - 0.03 - 0.03
31 March 2022 - - - - N
Pankaj Sahni 31 March 2023 - - 1.20 - 1.20
31 March 2022 - - 1.20 - 1.20
2 |Trade payables
Sunil Sachdeva 31 March 2023 - - 30.54 - 30.54
31 March 2022 - - 30.54 - 30.54
IFAN Global India Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - - -
31 March 2022 - - - 5.13 5.13
Law Chamber of Kapur & Trehan 31 March 2023 - - - 135 1.35
31 March 2022 - - - 4.48 4.48
Language Architecture Body 31 March 2023 - - - 26.09 26.09
31 March 2022 - - - 0.17 0.17
Medanta Holdings Private Limited 31-March-23 - 0.76 - - 0.76
31-March-22 - - - - -
Chambers of Shyel Trehan 31 March 2023 - - - 7.50 7.50
i 31 March 2022 , - B 17.82 17.82
3 |Other receivables
Medanta Institute of Education & Research (Trust) 31 March 2023 - - - 9.99 9.99
31 March 2022 - - - 7717 7.77
Devyani International Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 95.57 95.57
31 March 2022 - - - 91.66 91.66
IFAN Global India Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 11.91 1191
31 March 2022 - - - - -
S.A.S Infotech Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 116.70 116.70
31 March 2022 86.28
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known as 31 March 2023 - 1.59 - - 1.59
Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2022 - - - - -
Medanta Holdings Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - -
31 March 2022 - 102.61 - - 102.61
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 20.87 - - 20.87
31 March 2022 - - - - -
4 |Trade receivables
Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 266.84 266.84
31 March 2022 - - - 266.89 266.89
RJ Corp Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 0.60 0.60
31 March 2022 - - - 6.10 6.10
Varun Beverages Limited 31 March 2023 - - - (0.03) (0.03)
31 March 2022 - - - 0.17 0.17
Devyani International Limited 31 March 2023 - - - 290 2.90
31 March 2022 - - - 278 2.78
S.A.8 Infotech Private Limited 31 March 2023 - - - - -
31 March 2022 - - - 40.32 40.32
Medanta Foundation - Poor and Needy Patients Welfare Trust 31 March 2023 - - - 2.74 2.74
31 March 2022 - - - 13.11 13.11
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known as 31 March 2023 - 22.65 - - 22.65
Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2022 - - - - -
Medanta Holdings Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 38.14 - - 38.14
31 March 2022 - 4.81 - - 4.81
5 |Other payables
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 50.98 - - 50.98
31 March 2022 - 173 - - 173
6 |t in subsidiary companies#
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 31,900.00 - - 31,900.00
31 March 2022 - 29,900.00 - - 29,900.00
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known as 31 March 2023 1,001.00 - - 1,001.00
Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2022 - - - - h
Medanta Holdings Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 42,850.00 - - 42,850.00
31 March 2022 - 42,850.00 - - 42,850.00
7 |Guarantee given on behalf of subsidiary companies to third
party#
Global Health Patliputra Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 36,500.00 - - 36,500.00
31 March 2022 - 36,500.00 - 36,500.00
Medanta Holdings Private Limited 31 March 2023 - 2,800.67 - - 2,800.67
31 March 2022 - 2,800.67 - - 2,800.67

(=]

ion 186(4) - There are no investments or loan given or guarantee provided or security given by the Company other than the investments and guarantee stated under note 8 and
s, which have been made predominantly for the purpose of business.

% ansactions are at aems length and in the ordinary course of business.
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Note - 38
Capital management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are :

- To ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, and

- To maintain optimum capital structure and to reduce cost of capital

Management assesses the capital requizements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk chasacteristics of the underlying as

ts. The Company is not subject to extemally imposed capital requirements. The Campany manages its capital requirements by overseeing the gearing ratios

® in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Total borrowings (excluding interest accrued)
Total equity
Debt to equity ratio

10,154.80
8,885.67
4.08%

5

7.02%

Note - 39
Conti liabilitics and

A Contingent liabilitics

(@ in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
[ncome-tax matters [refer note (), (i) and (i) below] 2,568.99 2,177.48
Other cases [refer note (iv) below] 2,101.16 20123

Notes:

(i) Income-tax matters are primarily around disallowances related to employee share based payment expense and certain other expenses and are pending with Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals).

(@) Itis not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the respective proceedings.

(i) "The amounts disclosed above represent the best possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available information and do ot include any penalty payable.

(iv) The Company is contesting various medical/employec-related legal cases in various forums. Based on the legal view from an extemnal consultant and intemal analysis, contingent liabilities have been created for these cases, except
whete the likelihood of any outflow of resources is remote.

B Commitments
(i) Capital commitment

® in lakhs)

[Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at31 March 2022 |

[Propesty, plant and equip and capital work-in-p:

55 (net of advances)

1451920

292585 |

(i) Other commitment

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Bank guarantee” 245,71 16658
Corporate guarantee@ 2,800.67 2,800.67

“This includes bank guarantees given for capital goods imported under the Export Promotion Capital Goods of the Government of Indis, at concessional rates of duty on an undertaking to fulfill quantified exports within stpulated

period of time.

@The Company has issued corporate guarantee amounting to ¥ 2,800.67 lakhs to the Deputy Commissioner of Customs, New Delhi on behalf of Medanta Holdings Private Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary) for importing capital
d pany p 8u 2 8 eputy &
goods under the Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme.

d dertal

the

During the previous financial year, the Company had

one of the subsidiary and has instead given a comporate guarantee for the sanctioned facility of 2 36,500 lakhs.

(This gpace has been intestionally bt blank)

infusion of equity or unsecured loan in case of shotfall in servicing credit facilities given to the bank in case of the borrowing availed by
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Note —40
Lease related disclosures as lessee

The Company has leases for land, buildings, equipments and vehicles. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability. Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability and right of use assets. The Company has presented its

right-of-use assets in the balance sheet separately from other assets

Each lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublease the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Company. Some leases contain
an option to extend the lease for a further term. The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as security. For leases over buildings equipments, vehicles and land the Company
must keep those properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in their otiginal condition at the end of the lease. Further, the Company is required to pay maintenance fees in accordance with the lease

contracts.

A Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability

The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

® in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Short-term leases +4565.00 4,488.35
B Asat 31 March 2023, the Company was committed to short-term leases and the total commitment at that date was ¥ 52.70 lakhs (31 March 2022 : X 63.99 lakhs).
€ Total cash outflow for leases for the period ended 31 March 2023 is ¥ 3,434.89 lakhs (31 March 2022 :% 3,392.50 lakhs).
D Total expense recognised during the year
( in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on lease liabilities 1,870.88 1,957.85
Depreciation on right of use asset (excluding capitalisation amounting to Rs. 195.80 lakhs) 1,103.65 1,301.64
E Maturity of lease liabilities
The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments were as follows:
( in lakhs)
31 March 2023 Minimum lease payments due
Less than 1year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Lease payments 2,892.11 2,240.45 2,552.33 2,47,275.38 2,54,960.27
Interest expense 11475 308.22 560.61 2,35,366.37 2,36,349.95
Net present values 2,771.36 1,932.23 1,991.72 11,909.01 18,610.32
(Z in lakhs)
31 March 2022 Minimum lease payments due
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Lease payments 3,151.25 251614 1,966.50 2,48,406.37 2,56,040.26
Interest expense 102.86 273.36 438.66 2,36,630.51 2,37,445.39
Net present values 3,048.39 2,242.78 1,527.84 11,775.86 18,594.87
F Bifurcation of lease liabilities in current and non-current (% in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
) Curren liability (amount due within one year) 2,777.36 3,048.39
b) Non-current liability (amouat due over one year) 15,832.96 15,546.48
Total lease liabilities at the end of the year 18,610.32 18,594.87

G Information about extension and termination options as at 31 March 2023

Right of use assets Number of leases Range of remaining Average remaining lease Number of leases with Number of leases with Number of leases with
term (in years) term (in years) extension option purchase option termination option
Building premises 17 3.69 to 18.26 12 9 - 14
Other plant and equipment 1 17.86 17.86 - - 1
Vehicles 6 3.02-3.92 3.47 6 6 6
Land 1 84 84 - - -
Inf about and optons as at 31 March 2022
Right of use assets Number of leases Range of remaining Average remaining lease Number of leases with Number of leases with Number of leases with
term (in years) term (in years) extension option purchase option termination option
Building premises 16 0.25 to 19.26 1212 9 - 14
Other plant and equipment 1 19 19 - - 1
Vehicles 1 0.78 0.78 1 1 1
Land 1 85 85 - - -
(i) Lease related disclosures as lessor
The Company has enteted into operating leases for car parking for a period of 3 years.
Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases ate as follows:
(& in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within one year 102.00 34.00
Later than one year but not later than five years -

Later than five years

136.00

e

-
St g
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Note - 41
Employee benefits obligations

A Defined contribution plan

Particulars For the year ended Tor the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Employer’s contribution to provident fnd 1,705.61 1597.92
Contribution to Employee state insurance scheme 62.51 65.51
Contribution to libour welfare fund 25.68 2469
Total 1,791.80 1,688.12
*Contributions are made to recognised provident fund ad d by the G of India for empl at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The obligation of the Company is imited fo the amount
contrbuted and it has no further contractual or constructive obligation.

B Grawity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of geatuity payable on

is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 day

(i) Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

alary multiplied for the number of years of service

( in lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Present value of the obligation 431826 599312
Unfunded lisbility /provision in balance sheet (4,318.26) (3,993.12)

Bifurcation of present value of obligation - current and non-current

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Cuzrent liability 845.17) 752,04
Non-current liability 3,473.09 3,241.08
Total 4,318.26) 3,993.12
(if) Amount (gain)/loss recognized in other comprehensive income (% in lakhs)
Particulars For the ycar ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuarial (gain) /loss
-Changes in demographic assumptions (7.93) (0.26)
-Changes in financial assumptions (45.30) 537.2
-Changes in esperience adjustment (101.63) (222.61)
Actuarial (gain)/loss in other compret income (154.86) 314.39
(iii) Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss ® in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 547.44 531.90
Interest cost 289.90 215.06
Expense recognized during the year 837.31 746.96
() M in the liability in the balance sheet is as under: (% in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 399512 3,181.30
Current service cost 547.44 531.90
Interest cost 289.90 215.06
Actuarial (gain) /loss (154.86) 314.39
Bencfits paid (357.33) (249.53)
Present value of defined bencfit obligation at the end of the year 1,318.27 3,993.12

(v) For determination of the liability of the Company the following actuarial assumptions were used:

Particulars

As at 31 March 21

As at 31 March 2022

Discount rate
Salazy escalation rate
Retirement age (years)
Average past service
Average age
Average remaining working life
Withdrawal rate
Up to 30 years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

7.26%|
8.00%
60 years
3.91

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of IALM (2012 — 14)

(vi) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted)

(@ in lakhs)

Year

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022,

0to 1 year

6 years onwards

84517
329.31

580.06
329.79

Gross total

6,718.41

Sensitivity an

is for gratuity

® in lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

31 March 2022

2) Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 4,318.26 3,993.12
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (167.03) (161.61)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 180.19 174.76

b) Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 4,318.26 3,993.12
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 178.28 172.68
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (166.87) 161.29)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material. Hence, impact of change is not caleulated above.

Sensitivities as o rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retizement and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retizement.

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in sum of the

lated. When calcul

sptions may be

the sensitivity of defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of defined benefit obligations caleulated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has

been applied when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.
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(viii) Risk

Salary inc Actual salary increases will increase the plan’s liability. Increase in salary increment rate ption in future valuations will also icrease the liability.
Discount Change in discount rate in subsequent valuations can impact the plan’s liability.

Mortality and disability Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the libilifies.

Withdrawals Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdzawal rates at sul 1 Can impact pla’s iability.
Note - 42

Share based payments
Global Health Employee Stock Option Scheme 2014
The Company vide General Meeting resolution dated 25 September 2014 approved “Global Health Employee Stock Option Scheme 2014 for granting employee stock options in the form of equity shates linked to the completion

of a minimum period of continued employment to the eligible emplogees. The plan was modified on 1

2016 where in the Company increased the number of available options from 740,628 to 852973 to cligible employees and
the vesting pesiod was sevised from 5 years from the date of grant to gended vesting of 25% each year stasting with effect from 30 Apsl 2016. The eligible employees, including dizectos, for the puspose of this scheme will be

i by the R Committee from time to time. Each unexercised stock option entitle the cligible employee to avail five shares. The vested options can be exercised within a pedod of 3 years from the date of
vesting. This Scheme was further amended on 17 September 2021 to align with the Secusities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits Regulations and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (the “SEBI SBEB
Regulations”).

Movement in number of options:
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Opening balance B

Exercised during the year -

Closing balance - -

Pardiculars Grant [ Grant 11 Grant 111 Grant IV
Outstanding options (unvested and vested but not exercised) as at 31 Mazch 2023 - - - -

Outstanding options (unvested and vested but not exercised) as at 31 March 2022 - - - -
Grant date 25 September 2014 13 July 2016 9 November 2016 10 December 2016

Vesting period Graded  vesting  (25%)|Graded vesting (25% options to|Graded vesting (25% options to|Graded vesting (25% options|
options to vest every year|vest every year from the date of|vest every year from the date of|to vest every year from thel
from the date of grant) | grant) grant) date of grant)

Exercise price 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00

Expiry date 29 April 2022 12 July 2023 08 November 2023 09 December 2023

Fair value of option on the date of grant” 691.95 74228 755.29

Remaining contzactual life (weighted months) as at 31 March 2023 - - - -

Remaining contractual life (weighted months) as at 31 March 2022 - - - _

*The fair value of the options has been determined using the Black Scholes model, as certified by an independent valuer with the following assumptions:

Particulars Grant Grant IT Grant 11T Grant IV
Weighted avernge share price (Rs) 698.65 749.78 762.95
rcise price (Rs) 10.00 10.00 10.00
Expected volatility (25) 37% 37% 36%
Expected life of the option (years) 17 17 17
Risk-free interest rate 8.70% 7.18% 651%
Weighted average fair valuc as on the grant date (Rs) 691.95 742.28 75524

Global Health Employee Stock Option Scheme 2016
The Company vide General Meeting resolution dated 13 July 2016 approved “Global Health Employee Stock Option Scheme 20167 for granting employee stock options in the form of equity shares linked to the completion of a
minimum period of continued employment to the cligible employees. The eligible employees, including directors, for the purpose of this scheme will be d d by the R Committee from time to time. Each
unexercised stock option entitle the eligible employee to avail five shares. Total options to be granted under this Scheme are 1,025,000. The vested options can be exercised within a period of 3 years from the date of vesting, This
Scheme was further amended on 17 September 2021 to lign with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits Regulations and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (the “SEBI SBEB Re

Movement in number of options:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Opening balance 1,00,500 351,250
Excrcised dusing the year 18,058 2,50,750
Closing balance 82,442 1,00,500
Particulars Grant Grant 11 Grant 111 Grant IV Grant V
Outstanding  options (wvested and vested but not B 12,500 B - 69,942
exercised) as at 31 March 2023
Outstanding options (unvested and vested but ot B 12,500 B - 88,000
exercised) as at 31 March 2022
Grant date 10 December 2016 19 March 2018 17 Apdl 2018 25 April 2018 13 July 2018
Vesting period Graded vesting (25% options to vest Graded vesting (25%] Graded vesting (33.33% options| Graded vesting (33.33% options to| Graded vesting (20% options
every year from the date of grant)|  options o vest every year| to vest every year from the date|  vest every year from the date of|  to vest every year from the
from the date of grant) of grant) grant) date of grant)
Exercise price 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
Expizy date 09 December 2023 19 March 2025 16 Apil 2024 24 April 2024 13 July 2026
Fair market value of option on the date of grant” 755.2+ 62601 626.03 626.16 626.17
Remaining contractual lifc (weighted months) as at ~ 2597 E - 3000

31 Maxch 2023

Remaining contractual life (weighted months) as at B 3613 B - 5217
31 March 2022

“The fair value of the options has been determined using the Black Scholes model, as certified by an independent valuer with the following assumptions

Particulars Grant 1 Grant 11 Grant I1T Grant IV Grant V.
Weighted average share price (Rs.) 762.95 63544 6354+ 63344 63344
Excrcise prce (Rs) 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
Espected volatility (%) 36% 37% 37.60% 57.76% 3733%
Expected life of the option (years) 7 17 16
Risk-free interest cate 651% 7.44% 8.09%

Weighted average fair value as on the grant date (Rs.) 755.24 626.01 62603

During the year ended on 31 March 2023 and 31 Mazch 2022, the Company has recorded an employee stock compensation expense of € 74.78 lakhs and Z 173.81 lakhs respectively.
Dusing the year ended on 31 March 2023, the total number of options vested but not exercised is 38,442 (31 March 2022 : 12,500).
The weighted average shace price on the date of exercise is ¥ 289.41 (31 March 2022 ¥ 262.97) (after considering effect of share split done in year ended 31 March 2

Global Health Employee Stock Option Scheme 2021
The Company vide General Mecting resolution dated 17 September 2021 approved “Global Health Employee Stock Option Plan 20217 for granting employee stock options in the form of equity shares linked to the completion of a

period of continued empl to the eligible emplogees. The Company is yet to grant options under this Scheme.
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I

Note - 43

The chief operating decision maker (CODM) examines the Company's 1 from a service persp

and has identified the Healthcare services as a single business segment. The Company is operating in India which

constitutes 2 single geographical segment. The CODM reviews internal management reparts to assess the performance of the segment 'Healtheare services', There are no transactions with a single external customer which would

amount to ten percent or more of the Company's revenues.

Note - 44

Research and development expenditure for the period ended 31 March 2023 includes consultant’s and specialist honorarium amounting to ¥ 3.40 lakhs (31 March 2022: % 5.90 lakhs) and salasdes of employees amounting to T 82.93

lakhs (31 March 2022: T 68.91 lakhs).

Note - 45

Revenue related disclosures

Disaggregation of revenue

Tabulated below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue:

® in lakhs)

Description

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(A) Operating revenue

Income from healthcare services

In patient 1,55,809.51 1,40,678.04
Out patient 3344890 30,366.79
Income from sale of pharmacy products to out-patient
Sale of pharmacy products 559720 4123.67
(B) Other operating revenue
Clinical research income 157.60 19422
Other operating revenue 42422 20351
Total revenue under Ind AS 115 1,05,437.43 1,75,566.23

® in lakhs)

Deseription

Tor the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Income from healthcare services

Government 25,495.40 23,504.13
Non-government 1,63,763.01 147,540.70
Total income from healtheare services 1,89,258.41 1,71,044.83

Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables and contract libilities from contract with customers:

® in lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Contract liabilities

Advance from customers 3,549.20 2,852.88
Total contract liabilities 3,549.20 2,852.88
Cantract assets

Unbilled revenue 1,525.76 1,604.15
Total contract assets 1,525.76 1,604.15

Contract asset is the right to receive consideration in exchange for goods ar services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity's obligation to transfer goods or services o a customer for which the entity has received

consideration from the customer in advance. Contract assets (unbilled receivables) are transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional and contract liabilities are recognised as and when the perfonmance obligation is

satisfied.

Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

(% in lakhs)

Contract liabilitics - Advance from customers

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Opening balance of contract liabilitics - Advance from customers 285288 2,403.95
Add: Addition during the year 1,89,954.73 1.71,493.76
Less: Amount of revenue recognised during the year (1,89,258.41) (1,71,044.83)
Closing balance of contract liabilitics - Advance from customers 3,549.20 2,852.88

The aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to the perf
ustomers (gross) against healtt
as per the policy of the Company.

bl (yet to 1

as at 31 March 2023 is ¥ 3,549.20 lakhs (31 March 2022
services. The

Reconciliation of revenue recoguised with conteact revenue:

+ 22,8528 lakhs). This balance represents the advance received from
expects to further bill and collect the remaining balance of total consideration in the coming periods. These balances will be recognised as revenue in subsequent period

@ in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contract revenue 1,98,30027 1,80212.28
Less: Adjustments for discount (3,444.65) (5,043.78)
Total revenuc under Ind AS 115 1,04,855.62 1,75,168.50

(This spave has been intentionally kft blank)
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Note - 46

New disclures as per the requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Act

A Ageing scPedule of capital work-in-progress

(% in lakhs)
31 March 2123 Less than { year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in Plogress 6,973.43 108.62 73.83 271.04 7,426.92
Projects ter¥Porarily suspended - - - 66.92 66.92
Total 6,973.43 108.62 73.83 337.96 7,493.84
(% in lakhs)
31 March 2022 Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in Progress 228.22 75.80 9.68 261.35 575.05
Projects terfporarily suspended - - - 66.92 66.92
Total 228.22 75.80 9.68 328.27 641.97
Details of Projects temporarily suspended
(% in lakhs)
31 March 2023 To be completed in
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Guest hous e facility - - 51.04 - 51.04
In-patient A block (upgrades) - - 15.88 - 15.88
Total - - 66.92 - 66.92
(R in lakhs)
31 March 2022 To be completed in
Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Guest house facility - - - 51.04 51.04
In-patient A block (upgrades) - - - 15.88 15.88
Total - - - 66.92 66.92
B Ageing schedule of trade receivables
( in lakhs)
31 March 2023 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 5,213.08 6,411.59 2,780.78 3,981.99 94.43 76.27 18,558.14
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - 376.64 1,126.21 2,755.10 4,257.95
Disputed trade receivables — considered good - - - - - 317.70 317.70
Total trade receivables 5,213.08 6,411.59 2,780.78 4,358.63 1,220.64 3,149.07 23,133.79
Unbilled revenue 1,525.76 - - - - - 1,525.76
(X in lakhs)
31 March 2022 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
Not due Less than 6 months 6 months -{ year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 6,019.51 7,682.64 2,925.95 1,797.05 33.20 114.79 18,573.14
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - 177.11 1,067.91 4,071.84 5,316.86
Disputed trade receivables — considered good - - - - - 317.70 317.70
Total 6,019.51 7,682.64 2,925.95 1,974.16 1,10L.11 4,504.33 24,207.70
Unbilled revenue 1,604.15 - - - - - 1,604.15
C Ageing schedule of trade payables
(X in lakhs)
31 March 2023 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
Not due Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Micro, small and medium enterprises 4,653.91 783.79 - - - 5,437.70
Others 4,149.36 3,850.14 117.93 113.06 564.67 8,795.16
Total 8,803.27 4,633.93 117.93 113.06 564.68 14,232.86
(% in lakhs)
31 March 2022 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
Not due Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Micro, small and medium enterprises 2,007.34 517.37 0.84 - 6.20 2,591.75
Others 4,672.36 2,336.13 150.81 202.70 373.80 7,735.80
Total 6,739.70 2,853.50 151.65 202.70 380.00 10,327.55
D Details of promoter shareholding
Name of promoter 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares % of total shares % change during Number of shares % of total shares % change during the
the period period
Dr. Naresh Trehan*# 8,87,25,457 33.08% 1.96% 8,87,25,240 35.04% 1.65%

* This is the shareholding post share split
#Dr. Naresh Trehan is the first holder

t

Details related to borrowings secured against current assets

The Company has given current assets (trade receivables and inventories) as security for working capital (fund and non fund based limits) obtained from ICICI Bank Limited HDFC Bank Limited and Yes Bank Limited. The Company submitted
the required information with the bank and the required reconciliation is presented below:

31 March 2023 (X in lakhs)
Nature of current assets offered as security Quarter (Q) and Amount disclosed as | Amount as per books of Variance Remarks
Financial year 2022-23 per statement accounts
(FY 23)
Inventories and trade receivables Q1FY 23 30,808.00 30,861.87 53.87 | Variance is not material.
Inventories and trade receivables Q2FY 23 30,227.00 30,228.74 1.74 | Variance is not material.
Inventories and trade receivables Q3FY 23 32,265.00 32,329.55 64.55 | Variance is not material.
Inventories and trade receivables Q4FY 23 29,062.00 27,355.22 (1,706.78) | The variance 1s largely on account of certain
receivables written off as at the year-end.
31 March 2022 (% in lakhs)
Nature of current assets offered as security Quarter (Q) and Amount disclosed as | Amount as per books of Variance Remarks
Financial year 2021-22 per statement accounts
(FY 22)
Inventories and trade receivables Q1 FY 22 27,078.00 27,077.51 (0.49) | Variance is not material.
Inventories and trade receivables Q2FY 22 27,023.00 27,007.86 (15.14) | Variance is not material.
Inventories and trade receivables Q3 FY 22 29,947.00 29,939.72 (7.28)| Variance is not material.
Inventories and trade receivables 28,209.82 28,400.00 190.18 | Variance is not material
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Note - 47
Financial ratios

N @es to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

r—
Ratio Measurement Numerator Denominator As at As at Change Remarks
unit 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Ratio Ratio
Cugrent ratio Times Current assets Current liabilities 352 2.37 48.59% |Note 1C below
Debt-equity ratio Times Total debt Total equity 0.04 0.07 -41.88%|Note 1B below
[Non-cutrent borrowings + Current
borrowings]
s
Ratio Measurement Numerator Denominator For the year ended For the year ended Change Remarks
umnit 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Ratio Ratio
Debt service coverage Times Earnings before depreciation and  |Interest expense (including 9.04 12.60 -28.26%|Note 1B below
atio amortisation and interest capitalised) + Principal repayment
[Profit after tax + Depreciation and | (including prepayments)
amortisation expense + Finance
costs (excluding interest on lease
liabilities)]
Return on equity ratio Percentage Profit after tax Average of total equity 12.45% 13.57% -8.28%|Note 1A below
Taventory turnover ratio | Times Costs of materials consumed + Average inventories 11.32 1251 -9.46% |Note 1A below
Purchases of stock-in-trade +
Changes in inventories of stock-in-
trade
Trade receivables Times Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 11.32 11.65 -2.85%|Note 1A below
furnover ratio
Trade payables turnover | Times Purchases + other expenses + Average trade payables 8.31 8.47 -1.92%|Note 1A below
ftio Retainers and consultants fee
[Purchases = Pharmacy, medical
and laboratory consumables related
to In-patient services + Pharmacy
and medical consumables related to
sale of pharmacy products to out-
patients]
Net capital turnover ratio | Times Revenue from operations Working capital 1.96 4.26 -54.06% | Note 1C below
[Current assets - Current
liabilities]
Net profit ratio Percentage Profit after tax Revenue from operations 13.43% 12.40% 8.34%|Note 1A below
Return on capital Percentage Earnings before interest and tax = |Capital employed 13.37% 15.45% -13.46%|Note 1A below
employed Profit/loss before tax + Finance [Total assets - Current liabilities +
costs Current borrowings]
Return on investment Peccentage Interest income on bank deposits  |Current and non-current bank +.86% 4.05% 20.04% Note 1A below
deposits (monthly average)

Notes:

A Since the change in ratio is less than 25%, no explanation is required to be furnished.
B The change is primauily attributable to payment on account of maturity of non convertible debenture duting the current period
C The change in ratio is pimasily attributable to the increase in current assets on account of increase in cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances.

F

%

N2

i space has been infentionally left blank,
4
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Note - 48

Raman SF*ma (‘Complainant?) filed a First Information Report (‘FIR’) dated 6 June 2020 against, /nter alia, the Company and certain directors and other office bearers, under various provisions of the Indian Penal Code, the
Preventio#1of Money Laundering Act, 2002 and the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988. The Complainant had alleged that the Haryana Urban Development Authority (HUDA’) had illegally allotted hospital land parcel, which
resulted i£* Unfair pecuniary advantage. The
respect to he FIR before the Additional Sessions Court, Gurugram (“the Coust”). The Complainant filed a protest petition challenging the above Cancellation Report. Vide its order dared 12 March 2021, the Court accepted the
Cancellati @2 Report and the FIR stood cancelled. Prior to closing of the FIR, the Enforcement Directorate, New Delhi in its letter dated 22 December 2020 (‘Notice?) had also sought certain information from the Company
regarding, Wer alia, the capital investment made in and by the Company in India and overseas, details of bank accounts of the directors of the Company, and details of fixed assets created in the Company from inception until the
date of th€ Notice. The Company had duly provided the requisite information. Additionally, vide letter dated 12 April 2021, the Company had requested the Enforcement Directorate to close this matter in light of cancellation of
the FIR. Stbsequent to the year, on 22 July 2022, the Enforcement Directorate had duly accepted the closure report submitted by the prosecuting agency.

id matter was investigated and the investigation agencies concluded the matter in the favour of the Company. Accordingly, the investigation agencies filed a Cancellation Report with

Note -49

During th€year, the Company has completed its Initial Public Offer (IPO") of 6,56,41,952 equity shares of face value of Rs. 2 each for cash at a price of Rs. 336 per equity share (including a share premium of Rs. 334 per equity
share) aggigating to Rs. 2,20,556.96 lakhs. This comprises of fresh issue of 1,48,80,952 equity shares aggregating up to Rs. 50,000 lakhs (fresh issue') and an offer for sale of 5,07,61,000 equity shares aggregating to Rs.
1,70,556.9 §lakhs.

Note - 50
The Compiny has incurred share issue expenses of ¥ 9,461.54 lakhs in reference to initial public offer which are allocated between the selling shareholders and the Company as per the agreement. The Company’s share of these
expenses 153 2,146.98 lakhs (excluding income tax) which has been adjusted against securities premium.

Note - 51
During thé year, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved a binding term sheet for a new hospital at Indore on Operation and Management basis. The Company is yet to execute the relevant agreements.

Note - 52

The Compiny does not have any Benami Property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company.

The Compiny does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

The Compiny has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current year.

The Compiny has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any person or any entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ot entities identified in any manner whatsoever by a or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person or any entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by a or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any transactions and outstanding balances during the current as well as previous period with Companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act,
1956.

The notes to standalone financial statements including summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
This is the standalone summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
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